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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Members
Capri Global Housing Finance Limited

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their Thirteenth Annual Report together with
Audited Financial Statements of the Company and Auditor’s Report for the Financial Year
(“FY”) ended 31st March, 2019. Effective April 1, 2018, your Company has adopted Ind AS
and the adoption was carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101, first-time adoption of Indian

Accounting Standards, with April 1, 2017 as the transition date.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The summary of the Company’s financial performance for the Financial Year (“FY”) 2018-

19 as compared to the previous FY 2017-18 is given below:

(Amount in lacs.)

Particulars 2018-2019* | 2017-2018*
Rs. Rs.
Total Income 8,889.58 1,545.99
Less: Operating Expenses & Provisions 4,064.99 2,032.11
Profit/(Loss) before Interest, Depreciation & Taxes (PBIDT) 4,824.59 (486.12)
Less: Depreciation 176.37 52.25
Less: Interest & Finance Charges 3,721.14 164.88
Profit /(Loss) Before Tax (PBT) 927.08 (703.25)
Provision for tax 228.84 (6.15)
Profit / (Loss) After Tax (PAT) 698.24 (697.10)
Transfer to Reserves as per Section 29C of the National 140.00 211.00
Housing Bank Act, 1987
Earnings per Share (EPS) (Rs.) 1.88 (2.18)
Net-Worth 20,720.91 10,053.07
Assets Under Management 79,264.94 24,638.03

*Figures for FY 2017-18 and FY 2018-19 are provided as per IND AS.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND STATE OF AFFAIRS

Company’s focus continued to provide loan to first time home buyers belonging to middle
and lower income earning families. This was the Company’s second full year of operations
and the Company achieved a loan book of Rs.79,264.94 lacs as compared to Rs.24,638.03
lacs representing an increase of 221.72% and earned a Profit After Tax of Rs.698.24 lacs as
compared to loss of Rs.697.10 lacs of the previous year. The Company expanded its reach
to 75 branches spread over 6 states i.e. Maharashtra, Gujarat, Madhya Pradesh, Delhi NCR,

Rajasthan and Uttar Pradesh during the year.

The Company’s total revenue from operations during the financial year 2019 .\gvas
Rs.8,889.58 lacs and earned operating profit of Rs.698.24 lacs as compared to revenue from




operations of Rs.1,545.99 Lacs and loss of Rs.697.10 lacs in the previous year, respectively.
The Gross NPA of the Company stood at 0.5% and the Net NPA was at 0.2% as of March
31, 2019, lower than the industry average of 1.3% Gross NPA ratio as on September 2018.

FIRST-TIME ADOPTION OF IND-AS

In accordance with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards), Rules, 2015 of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’), the
Company has adopted the Indian Accounting Standards (IND-AS) for preparation of its
financial statements with effect from April 1, 2018, with comparative financials for the
earlier period beginning April 1, 2017.

For periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2018, the Company prepared its
financial statements in accordance with previous GAAP, including accounting standards
notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended). The
effective date for Company’s IND AS opening balance sheet is April 1, 2017.

The company has made available a note explaining the areas of difference between Indian
GAAP and IND AS and explained the reconciliation between the two GAAPs, in the notes
forming part of accounts.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year under review, the Authorised Share Capital of the Company stood at Rs.
65.00 Crores.

During the year, the Board of Directors of the Company made a Rights Issue of equity
shares and allotted 2,38,09,520 equity shares of Rs.10/-each fully paid-up at a premium of
Rs.32/- to the holding company i.c. Capri Global Capital Limited. As at March 31, 2019, the
equity share capital of the Company stood at Rs.60,71,42,800 divided into 6,07,14,280 equity
shares of Rs.10/ - each.

DIVIDEND

To conserve resources for business growth of the Company and to build up reserves, your
Directors do not recommend payment of any dividend on equity shares for the year ended
March 31, 20109.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES AS PER NHB DIRECTIONS

Pursuant to Section 29C(i) of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987, the Company is
required to transfer at least 20% of its net profit every year to a reserve before any dividend
is declared. Thus, during the year ended March 31, 2019, the Company has transferred
Rs.140 lacs to Reserves.



CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO

Your Company’s total Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR), as of March 31, 2019, is 50.83% which
is well above the regulatory minimum of 12% prescribed by NHB, providing much head
room to raise debt capital for business growth.

LOAN FROM BANKS

Total borrowing of the Company stood at Rs.67,997.72 lacs as on March 31, 2019 as against
Rs.10,984.67 lacs as on March 31, 2018. The Debt Equity ratio of the Company as at March
31, 2019 was 3.26 times. The Company has been regular in repayment of its borrowings.

During the year under review, your Company maintained banking relationships with 10
banks.

CREDIT RATING

During the year under review, the Company had its instruments rated and re-affirmed as
under:

CARE assigned rating with respect to the long- term bank facilities availed by the
Company, as follows:

Nature of Borrowing Amount Rating ]
Long-term Bank Facilities Rs. 1,10,000 lacs CARE A- Stable
(enhanced from Rs.60,000 lacs)

SMERA Ratings Limited assigned rating with respect to the bank facilities availed by the
Company, as follows:

Nature of Borrowing Amount Rating
Long Term Instruments Rs. 60,000 lacs SMERA A+ Outlook: Stable

Acuité Ratings & Research Limited assigned rating with respect to the bank facilities
availed by the Company, as follows:

Nature of Borrowing Amount Rating

Total Bank Facilities Long Term | Rs.60,000 lacs | ACUITE A+ (Read as ACUTE
Rating A plus) Outlook: Stable
Commercial Paper Short Term Rs.10,000 lacs | ACUITE Al+ (Read as ACUTE
Rating A one plus)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Management Discussion and Analysis report for the year under review as required
under Housing Finance Companies - Corporate Governance (NHB) Directions, 2016 is
forming part of the Directors Report.



DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

DIRECTORS
During the year under review, Mr. Kaushik Chatterjee (DIN 07779158), resigned as a
Director of the Company on July 27, 2018.

Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC),
the Board of Directors and the members of the Company approved the appointment of Mr.
Rajesh Sharma (DIN 00020037) as a Managing Director of the Company w.e.f. July 04, 2018,
for a term of 5 years as per the provisions of Section 196 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board
of Directors of the Company on January 31, 2019 approved the appointment of Mr. Beni
Prasad Rauka (DIN 00295213) as an Additional Director (Independent) on the Board of the
Company, subject to the approval of the shareholders, not liable to retire by rotation, to
hold office for a second term of 5 (five) consecutive years, commencing from April 01, 2019
to March 31, 2024.

Approval of the members for re-appointing Mr. Beni Prasad Rauka as an Independent
Director of the Company is being sought vide requisite resolution(s) in the accompanying
Notice dated April 27, 2019 convening the 13t Annual General Meeting.

In accordance with Section 152 of the Act and the Articles of Association of the Company,
Mr. Rajesh Sharma (DIN:00020037), Managing Director of the Company who is liable to
retire by rotation at the ensuing AGM and being eligible, has offered himself for re-
appointment.

As at March 31, 2019, the Company had three Independent Directors including one Woman
Director.

Pursuant to the ‘Fit and Proper’ Policy adopted by the Company under the Housing
Finance Companies - Corporate Governance (National Housing Bank) Directions, 2016, the
Company has received the ‘Fit and Proper’ declarations from Mr. Rajesh Sharma and Mr.
Beni Prasad Rauka for their appointment / re-appointment as Directors of the Company,
which have been taken on record by the NRC.

All Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of
independence as provided under Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013. Further, all
the Directors meet the ‘Fit and Proper’ criteria as per the policy of the Company and as
stipulated by NHB.

Additional information and brief profile, as stipulated under clause 1.2.5 of the Secretarial
Standard on General Meetings (“S5-2”) with respect to the Directors seeking
appointment/re-appointment, is annexed to the Notice of the AGM. Further, the business



items relating to the re-appointment of Director(s) have been included in the Notice of the
AGM.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

As at March 31, 2019, the Company had the following KMPs:
i) Mr. Rajesh Sharma, Managing Director;

ii) Ms. Kajal Jakharia, Company Secretary.

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME

No Stock Options were vested and exercised during the year, nor was there any grant of
Stock Options during the year under review. There were no ESOPs outstanding at the end
of the year.

POLICY FOR PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL OF SEXUAL
HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE

The Company has in place a Policy for Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual
Harassment at Work Place. Appropriate reporting mechanisms are in place for ensuring
protection against Sexual Harassment and the right to work with dignity. During the year
under review, the Company has not received any complaints in this regard.

FORMAL ANNUAL PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

Pursuant to Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, the Independent Directors meeting
was held on April 27, 2019 and the Board has carried out an annual performance evaluation
of Independent Directors, Board and Committee, along with the performance evaluation of
Directors of the holding company.

In a separate meeting of the Independent Directors, performance of the Non-executive
Director and performance of the Board was evaluated. The same was discussed in the Board
Meeting that followed the meeting of the Independent Directors, at which the performance
of the Board, its committees and individual Directors was also discussed.

The feedback of the Independent Directors on their review of the performance of Non-
Independent Directors and the Board and the assessment of the quality, quantity and
timeliness of flow of information between the Company Management and the Board was
taken into consideration by the Board in carrying out the performance evaluation.

STATUTORY AND REGULATORY COMPLIANCE

The Company has complied with applicable statutory provisions, including those of
Companies Act, 2013 and Income Tax 1961.



The Company is registered with the NHB as a Non-Deposit accepting Housing Finance
Company. The Company has complied with and continues to comply with all applicable
provisions of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987, NHB Directions 2010 and other
applicable rules/regulations/ guidelines, issued from time to time.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

i.  Overview

Housing Finance Industry is being viewed as an engine of economic growth with a major
role to play in the country’s development. Favorable structural factors, such as under
penetration of the mortgage market, the large gap between housing demand and supply,
improved affordability as a result of tax incentives, the encouraging regulatory
environment and positive demographic trends, are expected to fuel continued growth in
the housing finance market.

ii. Industry Outlook

Current Scenario

With more than 15 million units housing demand and a market size of more than INR 28
Trillion, housing finance industry is filled with ideas of tremendous market potential.
About 95% of the housing shortage in India is in the low-income segment which comprises
of the Low Income Group and Economically Weaker Sections. Continuous government
initiatives to provide "Housing for All by 2022" under PMAY, credit-linked subsidy and tax
benefits have further spurt the demand and supply in the industry.

Housing finance is perceived to be the third most impactful industry contributing
significantly to the economy with tremendous future potential and an important
employment generating sector. The housing finance market is dominated by banks but
there has been an increase in the number of new entrants in the housing finance market,
including HFCs promoted by existing NBFCs, new companies started by entrepreneurs and
supported by private equity players. This has led to increased competition in the industry.
Over the last year, the competition has further intensified with increased residual cash flow
with the nationalised banks (on account of funds deposited post demonetization) and with
newer housing finance companies being allowed to start the business by NHB.

The Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana (PMAY) and particularly the Credit Linked Subsidy

Scheme (CLSS) besides the incentives offered to developers is expected to usher in the
supply of affordable homes for the low income segment.

Affordable Housing Finance

Current Scenario

The Affordable Housing Finance industry received a much-needed growth impetus from
the ‘Housing for All by 2022" Scheme of the Government of India. With its launch in 2015,
the total housing shortage, envisaged to be addressed through the Pradhan Mantri Awas



Yojana - Urban was 20 million people. In a bid to promote the affordable housing segment,
the Government of India launched the Credit-Linked Subsidy Scheme (CLSS). Under this
scheme, easy institutional credit is provided to Economically Weaker Sections (EWS), Low
Income Groups (LIG) and Middle Income Groups (MIG) households for purchase of homes
with interest subsidy credited upfront to the borrower’s account through primary lending
institutions, effectively reducing housing loans and EMIs. Finally, in FY2015, the
Government defined affordable housing loans as eligible under priority sector lending & in
FY2018, granted infrastructure status to affordable housing.

The sustained support from the Government has allowed the affordable housing industry
to thrive in India. According to ICRA, India’s mortgage market has been steadily growing
at a CAGR of ~15% over the past 8 years. In FY19 the mortgage market touched INR 19.9
Lac Crores. Despite the steady growth in the formal mortgage market, India’s mortgage to
GDP ratio remains lowest amongst the key G20 countries, at just about 10%.

Mortgage to GDP Ratio Mortgage Markat in India (in Lakh Crore)
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Naturally, this has translated into phenomenal growth in affordable housing finance in
India. The home loan portfolio of housing finance companies grew at an accelerating pace
of 18% y-o-y tll 30 September 2018. Average loan ticket sizes was around ¥ 25 lakh, with
more than 80% of the home loan portfolio ranging between Z 10 lakh-1 crore bracket, with
better asset quality performance compared to lower and higher ticket sizes.

The growth in housing finance companies” AUMs can be attributed to two key factors: First
is the ability of HFCs to tap the massive opportunity in affordable housing, and second is
the slower credit growth at banks providing HFCs the room to ramp up faster and continue
gaining market share. The ability of HFCs to implement timely collection and recovery
efforts in respect of the delinquent loans — repossessing the property wherever necessary,
and selling the same in a timely manner ensures controlled NPA. Gross non-performing
assets (NPAs) ratio as on 30 September 2018 was 1.3% (slightly higher than 1.1% as on 31
March 2018).

iii. =~ Opportunities and Threats

A large proportion of the Indian population is below the age of 30 years. The expanding
urbanization, increase in supply of affordable homes, rising disposable incomes, reasonable
interest rates and improved affordability on home loans will drive the demand in this
sector. Further, Government initiatives to drive affordable housing under ‘Housing For All
by 2022’, will be a major growth driver for the small and mid-size HFCs.



The Housing sector also faces a new challenge, that of implementation and execution. A
very large number of schemes have been launched by the Government and there is huge
amount of work to be done to bring them into reality. Only with the unified effort of the
Government, real estate developers and financial institutions, success can be achieved.
There has been a steady increase of new entrants in the small and mid-size housing finance
sector and this increase in competition may lead to price wars, loan transfers and drop in
portfolio quality.

iv.  Business and Operational Overview

The Company has been gradually expanding its reach within the affordable housing
segment since its launch in 2016. Branch network within this segment was expanded to 75
branches spread across 6 states. Accordingly, FY19 AUM within housing finance stood at
Rs.79,264.94 lacs as compared to Rs.24,638.03 lacs in FY18 representing an increase of
221.72%.

Keeping in line with the industry averages, delinquencies remained contained due to
Company’s strict risk mitigation framework & prudent post-sanction monitoring of loans.
The company only lends to the affordable housing segment & only to those customers that
are using the house for self-stay. Average ticket size in this segment stood at Rs.10 lacs for

FY19. The company continues to maintain a loan-to-value of 47% on the housing finance
book.

v. Outlook

According to consulting firm FSG, low-income housing finance is expected to grow at 30-
40% over the next five years. Two-thirds of India’s population is below 35 years of age with
the average age of a first-time homebuyer in India is about 37-38 years. Thus, over the long
term, structural demand for housing in India will always remain strong, Overall, HFCs are
expected to continue doing well with home loan AUM likely to grow at 18-20% per annum,
according to CRISIL. The growth will be driven by: Housing shortage in the affordable
segment, regulatory facilitation, entry of a large number of HFCs with sharp focus on the
affordable segment, among other factors.

The Company aims to become most relevant player in its chosen customer segment. Its
product offerings and distribution network will significantly contribute to take the
Company to the next level. The Company is well-equipped to seize opportunities in the
housing finance sector.

The Company will be a key growth driver in the coming years. With the operating leverage
kicking in, productivity of sales personnel will increase significantly and the cost will be
kept under control. While the company is focussed on expansion of branch network to new
geographies as well, the company ensures to maintain a strong quality book.

vi. Risks and concerns

As a lending entity, the Company is exposed to various risks such as credit risk, market
risk, liquidity risk, legal risks, interest rate risk, and operational risk. The critical risks which.
can significantly impact profitability and financial strength are credit risk, interest ra,te flSI\
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and liquidity risk. The Company manages credit risk through internal credit norms.
Liquidity risk and interest rate risks arising out of maturity mismatch of assets and
liabilities are managed through regular monitoring of the maturity profile. The Company
emphasis on risk management practices to ensure an appropriate balance between risks
and returns. The Company has putin place a Risk Management framework as to safeguard
its assets and ensure sustainable business operations in the long term. The Risk
management Committee apprises the Board of the key risks associated with the business of
the Company and the measures to mitigate them.

The Audit Committee has been periodically reviewing the risk profile of the Company and
evaluating the adherence by the branches / functions of the systems and processes in place
for monitoring, evaluation, assessment and mitigation of risk through a systematic and
effective audit programme. The observations of Audit Committee, if any, on the risk
management are reported to the Board.

vii. Internal control systems and their adequacy

The Company’s internal control system is designed to ensure operational efficiency,
protection and conservation of resources, accuracy and promptness in financial reporting
and compliance with laws and regulations. The internal control system is supported by an
internal audit process for reviewing the adequacy and efficacy of the Company’s internal
controls, including its systems and processes and compliance with regulations and
procedures.

Internal Audit Reports are discussed with the Management and are reviewed by the Audit
Committee of the Board, which also reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal
controls in the Company. The Company’s internal control system is commensurate with its
size and the nature of its operations. Efficacy of Internal control systems are tested
periodically by Internal Auditors and Internal Control over financial reporting is tested and
certified by Statutory Auditors

viii. ~Human Resource Development

The Company recognizes people as its most valuable asset and it has built an open,
transparent and meritocratic culture to nurture this asset. There were 292 permanent
employees on the rolls of Company as at March 31, 2019 as compared to 253 employees in
the previous year, at 75 branches spread across 6 states i.e. Maharashtra, Gujarat, Madhya
Pradesh, Delhi NCR, Rajasthan and Uttar Pradesh,.

The Company is committed to maintain the highest standards of health, safety and security
for its employees and business associates and to operate in a healthy and safe environment.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION
186 OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 pertaining to granting of loans
to any persons or bodies corporates and giving of guarantees or providing security in

connection with loans to any other bodies corporate or persons are not apphcable to the_

Company since the Company is a Housing Finance Company.
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As regards investments made by the Company, the details of the same are provided under
notes in the financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2019.

CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The Board of Directors have formulated a Related Party Transactions (“RPT”) Policy. All
RPTs that were entered into during the FY 2018-19 were on arm’s length basis and were in
the ordinary course of business.

No material related party transactions were entered during the financial year 2018-19 by
your Company. Accordingly, the disclosure of related party transactions as required under
the provisions of Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC 2 is not
applicable to your Company. The Directors draw attention of the Members to Note No. 44
to the Financial Statements which sets out related party disclosures.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(3)(c) of the Act and based on the
information provided by the management, the Board of Directors of the Company, to the
best of their knowledge and belief, confirms that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019 and of the Profit of
the Company for the year ended on that date;

c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregularities;

d) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a ‘going concern basis’;

e) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicable laws and that the systems are adequate and are operating effectively.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

The Company did not hold any public deposits at the beginning of the year nor has
accepted any public deposits during the year under review.



STATUTORY AUDITORS

The Report given by M/s. Deloitte Haskins and Sells LLP, Chartered Accountants on the
financial statement of the Company for the financial year 2018-19 is part of the Annual
Report. The Notes on financial statements referred to in the Auditors Report are self-
explanatory and do not call for any further comments. The Auditors’ Report does not
contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Act read with the Companies (Audit &
Auditors) Rules, 2014 and the rules framed there under, the Members at their 11th Annual
General Meeting (AGM) held on July 17, 2017 appointed of M/s. Deloitte Haskins and Sells
LLP, Chartered Accountants, as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of five
years, to hold office from the conclusion of 11t AGM tll the conclusion of 16" AGM of the
Company.

DETAILS OF FRAUDS AS PER AUDITORS REPORT

There is no fraud in the Company during the F.Y. 2018-19. This is also being supported by
the report of the Auditors of the Company as no fraud has been reported in their audit
report for the year ended 315t March 2019.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Board of Directors of the Company has, on the recommendation of the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee framed a policy for selection of Directors, determining Directors
independence and payment of remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and
other employees. The Nomination and Remuneration Policy is enclosed as Annexure-I.

DISCLOSURES

Meetings of Board

Eleven meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the year on May 25, 2018, June
11, 2018, June 28, 2018, July 04, 2018, July 27, 2018, August 08, 2018, September 07, 2018,
November 14, 2018, December 26, 2018, January 31, 2019 and March 29, 2019. The
intervening gap between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises of Independent Directors namely Mr. Beni Prasad Rauka
(Chairman), Ms. Bhagyam Ramani, and Mr. T. R. Bajalia as other members. Four meetings
of the Audit Committee were held during the year on May 25, 2018, September 07, 2018,
November 14, 2018 and January 31, 2019. All the recommendations made by the Audit
Committee were accepted by the Board of Directors.




Nomination & Remuneration Committee

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee comprises of Ms. Bhagyam Ramani
(Chairperson), Mr. Beni Prasad Rauka and Mr. T. R. Bajalia as other members. Three
meetings of the Nomination & Remuneration were held during the year on May 25, 2018,
July 04, 2018 and January 31, 2019. The Company has received the ‘Fit and Proper’
declarations from all the Directors of the Company, which have been taken on record by
the NRC.

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

In accordance with the requirements of the provisions of Section 135 of the Act, the
Company has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility (‘CSR’) Committee. The
Committee comprises of Mr. Beni Prasad Rauka (Chairman), Ms. Bhagyam Ramani and Mr.
Rajesh Sharma as other members. The Company has also formulated a CSR Policy. One
meeting of the CSR Committee was held on September 07, 2018.

As part of its CSR initiatives, the Company has undertaken multiple programmes covering
areas of education, livelihood development, healthcare and sanitation during the year. The
projects undertaken during the year are in accordance with Schedule VII of the Act and the
CSR Policy of the Company. Further, details on the prescribed CSR spend under Section
135 of the Act and the amount committed and spent during the year under review is
provided in the Annual Report on CSR activities annexed to this report and marked as
Annexure IL

Risk Management Committee

The Board of Directors had constituted Risk Management Committee to identify elements
of risk in different areas of operations and to develop policy for actions associated to
mitigate the risks in addition to the Assets Liability Management Committee. At present
there are no identified risks which can threaten the existence of the Company or the
continuing nature of the business of the Company. Two meetings of the Risk Management
Committee were held during the year on November 21, 2018 and March 15, 2019.

The Company follows a proactive risk management policy, aimed at protecting its assets
and employees while at the same time ensuring growth and continuity of its business.
Regular updates on the development in the business environment and the risk mitigation
initiatives are provided to Board at its meeting.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

The provisions of section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, relating to conservation of
energy and technology absorption are not applicable to the Company. There was no inflow
or outflow of foreign exchange during the year under review.



Extract of Annual Return

The details forming part of the extract of the Annual Return in form MGT 9 may be accessed
on the Company’s website www.caprihomeloans.com

Particulars of Emplovees

There are no employees drawing remuneration in excess of amount prescribed as per the
provisions of section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

Significant and Material Orders Passed by the Regulators or Courts

During the year, there were no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators /
Courts which would impact the going concern status of the Company and its future
operations. Further, no penalties have been levied by NHB or any other regulator during
the year under review.

Material Changes and Commitments

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company which occurred between the end of the financial year to which these financial
statements relate and the date of this Report.

Secretarial Standards

During the financial year 2018-19, the Company has complied with the applicable
provisions of Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Sccretaries of India.
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Annexure I
Capri Global Housing Finance Limited

Nomination and Remuneration Policy

This Policy has been laid down on the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of the Board, and is in compliance with the requirements of the Section 178
Companies Act, 2013.

1.1 Objectives

The Policy lays down the:
(i) Criteria for determining infer-alia qualification, positive attributes and independence
of Directors for their appointment on the Board of the Company;
(i)  Criteria for payment of remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and
other Employees.

1.2 Definitions
i. “Board” means Board of Directors of the Company.

ii. “Company” means “Capri Global Housing Finance Limited.”

iii. “Employees’ Stock Option” means the option given to the Directors, Officers or
Employees of a company or of its holding company or subsidiary company or
companies, if any, which gives such Directors, Officers or Employees, the benefit or
right to purchase, or to subscribe for, the shares of the Company at a future date at a
pre-determined price.

iv.  A.’fitand proper ‘shall mean an individual who is :

a
b.
C

d

more than thirty years in age;
a graduate;

has minimum five years’ experience;
. a person of integrity, reputation and character in the opinion of the Committee;

v.  “Independent Director” means a director referred to in Section 149 (6) of the Companies
Act, 2013.

vi. “Key Managerial Personnel” (KMP) means

a)

b)
<)
d)
e)

Chief Executive Officer or the Managing / Executive Director or the
Manager,

Company Secretary,

Whole-time Director,

Chief Financial Officer and

Such other officer as may be prescribed.

vii. “Committee” shall mean the Nomination & Remuneration Committee of Board of
Directors of the Company, constituted in accordance with the provisions of Sechon 178
of the Companies Act, 2013.




viii.

ix.

X1.

1.3

“Policy or This Policy” means, “Nomination and Remuneration Policy.”

“Managerial Person” means the Managing Director, Whole-time Director and/or
Manager.

“Remuneration” means any money or its equivalent given or passed to any person for
services rendered by him and includes perquisites as defined under the Income-tax Act,
1961.

“Senior Management” means, personnel of the Company who are members of its core
management team excluding Board of Directors and who may be qualified to become
directors.

Interpretation

Terms that have not been defined in this Policy shall have the same meaning assigned to them
in the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI Act, 1992, as notified by the Securities and Exchange Board of
India from time to time.

1.4 Appointment and Removal of Managerial Person, Director, Key Management

ii.

Personnel and Senior Management Personnel

Appointment criteria and qualifications:

a)

b)

The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and
experience of the person for appointment as Managerial Person, Director, KMP or
Senior Management Personnel who may be qualified to become directors and
recommend to the Board his / her appointment.

The Committee has discretion to decide whether qualification, expertise and
experience possessed by a person are sufficient / satisfactory for the designated
position.

With respect to appointment of a Senior Management Personnel other than the one
mentioned above, the Human Resource Department with the consultation
/advice/recommendations of the respective Functional Heads/Promoter Director of
the Company, as the case may be, can decide on their appointments and the same
need not be recommended to the Committee/Board as the case may be.

Term / Tenure:

a) The Company shall appoint or re-appoint a person as its Managerial Person by
passing of a resolution and disclosure of such appointment in the Directors
Report forming part of the Annual Report.

b) No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive Terms,
but such Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of
three years of ceasing to become an Independent Director.



iv.

c) Provided that an Independent Director shall not, during the said period of three
years, be appointed in or be associated with the Company in any other capacity,
either directly or indirectly. Term can be for a maximum period of five years.

d) the time of appointment of Independent Director it should be ensured that
number of Boards on which such Independent Director serves, is restricted to
seven listed companies as an Independent Director and three listed companies as
an Independent Director in case such person is serving as a Whole-time Director
of the Company.

Removal:

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act’),
rules made there under or under any other applicable Act, rules and regulations, the
Committee may recommend, to the Board with reasons recorded in writing, removal of
a Managerial Person, Director, subject to the provisions and compliance of the Act,
rules and regulations.

Retirement:

The Managerial Person, Director, KMP and Senior Management shall retire as per the
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the prevailing policy of the
Company. The Board will have the discretion to retain the Managerial Person, Director,
and KMP, Senior Management in the same position / remuneration or otherwise even
after attaining the retirement age, for the benefit of the Company.

1.5 Disqualifications for Appointment of Directors

i

A person shall not be eligible for appointment as director of the company if:

a) he is of unsound mind and stands so declared by a competent court;

b) he is undischarged insolvent;

c) he has applied to be adjudicated as an insolvent and his application is pending;

d) He has been convicted by a court of any offence, weather involving moral turpitude
or otherwise, and sentenced in respect thereof to imprisonment for not less than six
months and a period of five years has not elapsed from the date of expiry of the
sentence:

Provided that if a person has been convicted of any offence and sentenced in respect
thereof to imprisonment for a period of seven years or more, he shall not be eligible
to be appointed as a director in any company:

1) An order disqualifying him for appointment as a director has been passed by
a court or Tribunal and the order in force;

2) He has not paid any calls in respect of any shares of the company held by him
whether alone or jointly with others and six months have elapsed from the
last day fixed for the payment of the call;

3) He has been convicted of the offence dealing with related party transactions
under section 188 at any time during the last preceding five years; or

4) He has not complied with sub-section (3) of section 152 of the Companies Ack,
2013. £ :



ii. A person who has been a Director of the company which:

a) has not filed financial statements or annual returns for any continuous period of
three financial years; or

b) has failed to repay the deposits accepted by it or pay interest thereon or to redeem
any debentures on the due date or pay interest due thereon or pay dividend
declared and such failure to pay or redeem continues for one year of more, shall be
ineligible to be appointed as a director of the Company for a period of five years
from the date on which the other company fails to do so.

iii. A person shall not be eligible for appointment and continuance as a Director, if he / she
is not found ‘fit and proper’ by the Committee.

1.6 Remuneration Policy

Remuneration Policy of Company is designed to attract, motivate, and retain manpower in a
competitive environment considering qualification, positive attribute, integrity and
independence, and is guided by the common reward framework and set of principles and
objectives. The Remuneration Policy applies to the Company’s Senior Management Personnel,
including its Key Managerial Person and the Board of Directors.

The policy captures remuneration strategies, policies and practices of Company, including
compensation, variable-compensation, equity-based plans and the process for the measurement
and assessment of employee and executive performance. The remuneration / compensation /
commission etc. to the Managerial Person, Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel
(who may be qualified to become directors) will be determined by the Committee and
recommended to the Board for approval.

1.6.1 Remuneration Strategy for Employees at Company

The Company adopts a total compensation philosophy in rewarding employees. The Total
compensation package for the employees comprises of Fixed and Variable Component. Fixed
pay consists of the base salary and any recurring, regular allowances payable in the specific
location. Variable pay includes performance bonuses and ESOP’s for eligible employees.

The level of Total compensation is designed to be appropriate to attract, retain and motivate
employees to contribute their best. In determining the Total compensation of employees, the
Company takes into account the role and its responsibilities, the individuals’ and teams’
performance, and the Company’s performance, as well as market factors. The Company’s
remuneration strategy is market-driven and aims at attracting and retaining high caliber talent.

Factors such as profitability and achievement of key performance indicators are taken into
consideration, in determining the bonus pool for the Company and its business units.
Individual bonus allocation is based on performance against various set of pre-defined
objectives.

The strategy is in consonance with the existing industry practice and is directed towards
rewarding performance, based on review of achievements, on a periodical basis.



1.6.2 Remuneration of Key Management Personnel

The Company shall review, at least annually, the Key Management personnel’s remuneration
arrangements in light of current market benchmarks and expert advice on remuneration levels
and, with due consideration to law and corporate governance principles.

Remuneration of the Key Management Personnel consists of a fixed component and a variable
performance incentive. The annual appraisal of the Key Management personnel is based on a
detailed performance evaluation of their Key Performance Indicators (KPI's)

L

ii.

1ii.

iv.

vi.

Vii.

Vviii.

ix.

b)

Fixed Component: Consists of Basic Pay (Usually 40%-60% of the gross Fixed Salary).

Perquisites: In the form of house rent allowance/ accommodation, reimbursement of
medical expenses, conveyance, children education, telephone, communication
equipments like Ipad’s etc.

Retirement Benefits: Pension contributions, Gratuity payments are made in accordance
with applicable laws and employment agreements.

Severance payments: In accordance with termination clauses in employment
agreements, the severance payment is in accordance with applicable local legal
framework.

Personal benefits: Based on employment agreements and Company policy, Company
Car and Driver is provided to specific grade.

Medical Insurance - Coverage of Rs. 5 Lacs every year to the personnel, his/her spouse,
two children and parents (In case of female employees they can choose the option for
including their in-laws in lieu of her parents).

Term Insurance - Coverage between Rs. 50 Lacs to Rs. 1 Cr. based on the grade.
Variable pay is linked to the below three factors:

a) the financial results of the company;

b) targets achieved;

c) the individual performance and that of the department/team

Annual Performance Linked Bonus: Individual bonus allocation takes performance
ratings and performance against various set of objectives mentioned below into

consideration:

In the beginning of the year the Board sets the organization performance objectives
based on qualitative and quantitative measures.

These objectives are reviewed periodically to ensure they remain consistent with the
Company’s priorities and the changing nature of the Company’s business.



c) These objectives form part of the performance targets for the Managerial Personnel.

d) Performance against these objectives is reviewed annually by the Board and is reflected
in the Managerial Personnel’s remuneration review.

1.6.3 Remuneration of Non-executive Directors including Independent Directors

The Non-Executive Directors of the Company (who are not in the employment of the Company
and/or its subsidiaries/associates) shall be paid sitting fees as per the limits prescribed under
the Companies Act, 2013. Commission, if any, payable to NEDs shall be approved by the Board
of the Company based on the recommendation of the Committee.

An independent Director shall not be entitled to any Stock Options of the Company.

1.7 Deviations from the Policy

Deviations on elements of this policy in extraordinary circumstances, when deemed necessary
in the interests of the Company, will be made if there are specific reasons to do so in an
individual case.

1.8 Amendments

The Remuneration policy may be reviewed by the Board of the Company on the
recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Board.

For and on behalf of the Board For and on behalf of the Board

o S

(Rajesh Sharma) (Beni Prasad Rauka)
Place: Mumbai Managing Director Director
Date: April 27, 2019 DIN: 00020037 DIN: 00295213




ANNEXURE II
CAPRI GLOBAL HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT ON CORORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILTY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programmed proposed to be undertaken and a reference
to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs.

The Company’s CSR policy is based on the firm belief that there can be nothing better than enriching the human capital of the society
which can provide a sustainable socio-economic impact. CGHFL is on a mission of creating a social impact through diverse CSR
activities and firmly believes that the mandate of our company does not end with multiplying returns for our shareholders, but must
fulfil larger responsibility towards the society. Company strives to have a positive impact on the communities in which we live and
operate. The Company’s CSR initiative has been directed to provide to the most economically and socially marginalized people,
particularly children, women and the differently-abled, an easy access to better education and vocational training. For more
information please refer CSR policy: https:/ /www.caprihomeloans.com/assets/pdf/CGHFL_CSR_POLIC Y.pdf

In accordance with the broad CSR philosophy your Company adopted projects as specified under schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013

a. Education
b. Livelihood development
c. Health
2. The Composition of the CSR Committee:
a. Mr. Beni Prasad Rauka - Chairman
b. Ms. Bhagyam Ramani - Member
¢. Mr. Rajesh Sharma - Member
3. Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years: Rs. 535.83 lacs

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the Average Net Profit as detailed above): Rs. 10.72 lacs



5. Details of CSR spend for the financial year:

A. Total amount spent during the financial year: Rs. 10.72 Lacs
B. Amount unspent, if any: NIL

C. Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:

(Rs. in lacs)

CSR project or activity Sector in Projects or Amount Amount spent | Cumulative Amount

identified which the programs Outlay on the projects | expenditure | spent: Direct
projectis | 1) Local area | (Budget) or programs up to the or through
covered or other; project or Sub-heads: reporting | implementing
2) Specify program 1) Direct period agency
Sr. the State wise expenditure on
No and district (Rs.in projects or
where lacs) programs
projects or
programs 2) Overheads:
was (Rs. in lacs)
undertaken

Contribution to the Areas NA 10.72 Direct - NIL 10.72 Direct - NIL;

corpus of Capri specified Overheads - NIL | (Contributio Through
Foundation towards under n to the implementing

CSR activities as per the | Schedule VII corpus of Agency -

1 focus areas and of the Capri Rs.10.72

program areas listed in | Companies Foundation | Contribution to
CSR Policy of the Act, 2013 for FY 18-19) Corpus of
Company Capri

Foundation *




*Capri Foundation is an implementing organization, on a mission of creating positive social impact through implementing innovative
CSR activities and development programs. Capri Foundation is registered under Bombay Public Trust Act 1950.
1. In case the Company has failed to spend the two percent of the average net profit of the last three financial years or any part thereof,

the reasons for not spending the amount in its Board’s report: Not Applicable
2. The CSR Committee confirms that the Policy on CSR is implemented and the Committee has monitored compliances with the CSR

objective and Policy of the Company.
@scfid—'—*
—

(Rajesh Sharma) (Beni Prasad Rauka)
Managing Director Chairperson of the CSR Committee
DIN: 00020037 DIN: 00295213
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To The Members of Capri Global Housing Finance Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Capri Global Housing Finance
Limited (the “Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2019, and
the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS") and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 315t March 2019, and its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows
and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

e The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and
Analysis and Directors Report (the “Reports”), but does not include the financial
statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The Reports are expected to be made
available to us after the date of this auditors’ report.

e Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

___e In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the

.A‘_} "{ ‘ 1,\\47

other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
«~nconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course
" of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

- Regd. Office: Indiabulls Finance Centre, Tower 3, 27" - 32™ Floor, Senapati Bapat erg, Elphinstone Road (West), Mumbai - 400 013, Maharashtra, India.

(LLP Identification No. AAB-8737)
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e If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income,
cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

-2 Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
’”\“\?h\design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section

""‘;43(3)0) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
" 2
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Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

The comparative financial information of the Company for transition date opening balance
sheet as at 1%t April 2017 included in these financial statements, have been prepared after
adjusting previously issued the financial statements prepared in accordance with the
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 to comply with Ind AS. The previously
issued financial statements were audited by the predecessor auditor whose report for the
year ended 31%t March 2017 dated 12" May 2017 expressed an unmodified opinion on this
financial statements. Adjustments made to the previously issued financial statements to
comply with Ind AS have been audited by us.

Our opinion on the financial statements is not modified in respect of the above matter on
the comparative financial information.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31t
March 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the
Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal
financial controls over financial reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in Note 48 to its financial statements. as at 315t March 2019;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts as at year-end for which there were any material foreseeable losses;
and

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

\
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2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure
B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants

(Firm’s Registration No.117366W/W-100018)

fhoe s

G. K. Subramaniam
Partner
(Membership No. 109839)

Mumbai: April 27, 2019
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Report on Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Capri Global
Housing Finance Limited (the “Company”) as of 31 March 2019 in conjunction with our audit
of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over
financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2019, based on the criteria for internal financial control
over financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.117366W/W-100018)

e

JpAp e
G. K. smm
Partner

(Membership No. 109839)

Mumbai: April 27, 2019
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

(i) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has

(i)
(i)
(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)
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maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the Management in
accordance with a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion,
provides for physical verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals.
According to the information and explanation given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records
examined by us, there are no immovable properties, included in property, plant
and equipment of the Company and accordingly, the requirement under paragraph
3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given
to us, the Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause
3(ii) of the Order is not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given
to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies,
firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained
under section 189 of the Act.

The Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provided guarantees
under the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act and hence reporting under
clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given
to us, the Company has not accepted any public deposit during the year and no order
in this respect has been passed by the Company Law Board or National Company Law
Tribunal or the Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other Tribunals.

To the best our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under
section 148(1) of the Act, in respect of the services rendered by the Company.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given
to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues,
including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and
Service Tax and cess to the appropriate authorities.

N (b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund,
A\

Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Service Tax and cess as at
8
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315t March 2019 for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

(c) Details of dues
given below:-

of Income-tax as on 31t March 2019 on account of disputes are

Name of Nature of Forpm whgre Period to which Amount
Statute Dues Dispute is the Amount (Rs.)
atd Pending Relates )
Regular
Income Tax | Assessment | Assessing
- 4
Act, 1961 u/s 143(3) | officer AY 2008-09 1,95:45
of the Act
Income Tax Interest u/s Assessin
220(2) of | "o S AY 2010-11 16,875
Act, 1961 the Act officer

There are no dues of Provident Fund, Employees’ state insurance, and Goods and
Service Tax as on 315t March 2019 on account of disputes.

(viii) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

to us, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to
banks. The Company has not taken any loan from government and financial
institutions. The Company has not issued any debentures.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given
to us, the money raised by way of the term loans have been applied by the Company
during the year for the purposes for which they were raised other than temporary
deployment pending application of proceeds. The Company has not raised moneys by
way of initial public offer/ further public offer including debt instruments.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanation given
to us, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers
or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has paid/provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the
Order is not applicable.

(xiii) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given

P

n \'

to us, the Company is in compliance with Section 188 and 177 of the Act, where
applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the

“A applicable accounting standards.
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(xiv) During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting
under clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xv) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given
to us, during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions
with its directors or persons connected with them and hence provisions of section 192
of the Act are not applicable.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.117366W/W-100018)

W#‘%

G. K. Subramaniam
Partner
(Membership No. 109839)

Mumbai: April 27, 2019
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(1) Financial assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 3 1,236,080,945 3,533,675 6,685,022
(b) Bank Balances other than (a) above 4 77,996,078 97,004,783 234,092,489
(©) Trade Receivables 5 42,876,480 4,594,526 1,038,587
(d) Loans 6 7,764,793,851 2,379,693,094 64,091,711
(e) Investments 7 - - 266,875,517
() Other financial assets 8 6,652,361 5,418,069 395,000
Total Financial Assets 9,128,399,715 2,490,244,147 573,178,326
(2) Non-Financial
(a) Current Tax Assets (Net) 9 6,665,447 1,165,687 6,187,346
(b) Deferred tax assets (Net) 10 42,064,553 41,161,029 15,036,612
(c) Investment properties 11 10,973,681 10,973,681 10,973,681
(d) Property, plant and equipment 12 22,670,597 24,271,578 1,291,446
(e) Other intangible assets 1,925,013 1,675,525 429,389
() Intagible Assets under development 588,600 - -
(g) Other non-financial assets 13 5,533,764 11,446,547 863,314
Total Non-Financial Assets 90,421,655 90,694,047 34,781,788
Total Assets 9,218,821,370 2,580,938,194 607,960,114
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
LIABILITIES
(1) Financial Liabilities
(a) Payables
Trade Payables 14
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small - - -
enterprises
(i) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 41,310,567 28,884,340 1,792,275
and smali enterprises
(b) Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 15 6,763,742,756 1,086,347,254 -
(©) Other financial liabilities 16 286,959,771 447,151,499 31,997,579
Total Financial Liabilities 7,092,013,094 1,562,383,093 33,789,854
(2) Non-Financial Liabilities
(a) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 17 5,472,849 - -
(b) Provisions 18 9,256,366 4,836,705 1,219,078
(©) Other non-financial liabilities 19 39,988,043 8,411,384 542,308
Total Non-Financial Liabilities 54,717,258 13,248,089 1,761,386
Total liabilities 7,146,730,352 1,575,631,182 35,551,240
3) EQUITY
(a) Equity 20 607,142,800 369,047,600 250,000,000
(b) Other equity 21 1,464,948,218 636,259,412 322,408,874
Total equity 2,072,091,018 1,005,307,012 572,408,874
Total equity and liabilities 9,218,821,370 2,580,938,194 607,960,114

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.

In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

(Firm Registration No.117366W/W-100018)

C/‘
e

-

G. K. Subramaniam
Partner
{Membership No. 109839)

Place: r\ V"*b e

= 2oyl 2011

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

(Rajesh Sharma)
Managing Director
DIN 00020037

(Beni Prasad Rauka)
Independent Director
DIN 00295213

Place: N\ q,wLaq
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{Bhagyam Ramani)

Independent Director
DIN 0010709,

(Kajal Jakifarla)
Company Secretary

Independent Director
DIN 02291892




Revenue from Operations

() Interest Income 22 678,806,399 106,957,639
(i) Fees Income 23 37,589,721 8,362,515
(iii) Net Gain on fair value changes 24 21,667,424 -
(iv) Other operating income 25 150,667,732 39,264,010
() Total Revenue from Operations 888,731,277 154,584,164
(II) |Other Income 26 226,717 14,689
(III) |Total Income (I+II) 888,957,993 154,598,853
Expenses
(i) Finance costs 27 372,114,138 16,487,808
(ii) Impairment on financial instruments 28 24,588,468 4,251,238
iii) Net Loss on fair value changes 29 - 6,297,204
(iv) Employee benefit expense 30 200,964,349 108,487,733
v) Depreciation and amortisation expense 17,637,511 5,224,828
(vi) Other expenses 31 180,945,329 84,174,912
(IV) [Total expenses 796,249,795 224,923,723
(V)  [Profit/(Loss) before Tax ( III - IV) 92,708,198 (70,324,870)
Tax expense
- Current tax 45,893,217 -
- Deferred tax (23,008,970) (16,821,504)
- Short provision for tax relating to prior years - 16,206,912
(VI) |Total tax expense 22,884,247 (614,592)
(VII)  net Profit / (Loss) After Tax ( V - VI) 69,823,951 (69,710,276)
(VIII) | other comprehensive income 32
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (362,983) 75,661
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 100,982 (21,049)
Other Comprehensive Income (262,001) 54,612
(IX) |[Total comprehensive income ( VII + VIII) 69,561,950 {69,655,664)
(09)] Earnings per equity share
Basic (%) 1.88 (2.18)
Diluted (%) 1.88 (2.18)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.

In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

(Firm Registration No.117366W/W-100018)

G. K. Subramaniam
Partner
(Membership No. 109839)

(Beni Prasad Rauka)
Independent Director

Place:
Date:
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(Rajesh Sharma)
Managing Director

DIN 00020037

DIN 00295213

Place: M\ wwmaben

Date: 27|04 [201y

{Bhagya

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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Independent Director
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Company Secretary
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CAPRI GLOBAL HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

(Amount in Rs.)
Year ended March 31, | Year ended March 31,
Particulars 2019 2018

Operating activities
Profit before tax from continuing operations 92,708,198 (70,324,870)
Profit before tax 92,708,198 (70,324,870)
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation & amortisation 17,637,511 5,224,828
Impairment on financial instruments 24,588,468 4,251,238
Net loss on financial asset designated at FVOCI - 6,297,204
Share Based Payments to employees (2,777,783) 2,553,881
Provision for Bonus 20,000,003 9,000,000
Provision for Gratuity 681,854 355,500
Provision for Leave Encashment 1,598,215 2,327,209
Operating Loss before working capital changes 154,436,466 {(40,315,010)
Working capital changes
Loans (5,409,689,225) (2,319,852,622)
Trade receivables (33,603,462) (15,606,302)
Trade payables 44,002,887 (3,555,939)
Other financial liability (160,191,729) 450,115,062
Provisions (18,223,394) (7,989,421)
Cash used in Operations before tax (5,423,268,457) (1,937,204,231)
Taxes Paid (23,713,700) (20,509,215)
Net cash used in operating activities (5,446,982,158) (1,957,713,446)
Investing activities
Purchase of fixed and intangible assets (17,718,622) (29,451,096)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 844,004 -
Maturity of Fixed Deposits 19,008,705 137,087,706
Proceeds from sale of investment at amortised cost - 260,578,313
Net cash flows from investing activities 2,134,086.45 368,214,923
Financing activities
Increase in Share Capital 238,095,200 119,047,600
Increase in Securities Premium 761,904,639 380,952,321
Borrowings other than debt securities issued 5,677,395,502 1,086,347,254
Net cash flows from financing activities 6,677,395,341 1,586,347,175
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,232,547,270 (3,151,348)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 3,533,675 6,685,022
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 1,236,080,945 3,533,674
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 730,794 81,072
Balances with banks

In current accounts 565,350,151 3,452,603

In Deposit accounts with original maturity of 3 months or less 670,000,000 -
Total cash and cash equivalents 1,236,080,945 3,533,675
1. Operational cash flows from interest and dividend:
Interest paid 372,359,058 16,487,808
Interest received 629,298,412 96,421,478

Dividend received

2. Cash flows arising on account of taxes on income are not specifically bifurcated with respect to Investing & financing activities.

3. Previous Years figures have been regrouped, wherever necessary to confirm to current year's classification.

4. Figures in brackets represent outflows.

In terms of our report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

(Firm Registration No.117366W/W-100018)

G. K. Subramaniam

Partner
(Membership No. 109839)

Place: A~ FJ e

Date: 13’/0 Y /':2" 7

Rsya—

(Rajesh Sharma)
Managing Director
DIN 00020037

(Beni Prasad Rauka)
Independent Director
DIN 00295213

Place: ™\ a~b e

Date: ,27’01'. ,&b\‘\

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

‘Q&\W\
(Bhagyam Ramani)

Independent Director
DIN 00107097

(Kajal Jakhafa)
Company Secretary

.R Bajalia)
Independent Director
DIN 02291892




CAPRI GLOBAL HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

_STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
A. _EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
(Amount in Rs.)
Balance at the beginning of the reporting Changes in equity |Balance at the end
year share capital of the reporting
during the year year
369,047,600 238,095,200 607,142,800
B. OTHER EQUITY
{Amount in Rs.)
Other Total
Reserves and Surplus Comprehensive
Income
Statutory Reserve Employee Benefit
Securities Employee Share |under Section 29C of
Premium Retained Earnings Option Outstanding |the National Housing -E)‘g::elr;ses (Gratuity
Bank Act, 1987
Balance as at April 1, 2017 - 315,184,972 223,902 7,000,000 - 322,408,874
Changes in accounting policy/prior period errors -
Restated balance at the beginning of the
reporting year - 315,184,972 223,902 7,000,000 - 322,408,874
Received during the year 380,952,321 (69,710,276) 2,553,881 21,100,000 54,612 334,950,538
Utilised during the year (21,100,000) (21,100,000)
Balance as at March 31, 2018 380,952,321 224,374,696 2,777,783 28,100,000 54,612 636,259,412
Other Total
Reserves and Surplus Comprehensive
Income
Statutory Reserve
Employee Benefit
Securities Employee Share |under Section 29C of
Premium Retained Eamings Option Outstanding |the National Housing -Egr;ses (Gratuity
Bank Act, 1987
Balance as at April 1, 2018 380,952,321 224,374,696 2,777,783 28,100,000 54,612 636,259,412
Changes in accounting policy/prior period errors
Restated balance at the beginning of the reporting
year 380,952,321 224,374,696 2,777,783 28,100,000 54,612 636,259,412 |
Received during the year 761,904,640 69,823,951 14,000,000 (262,001) 845,466,590
Utilised during the year - (14,000,000) (2,777,783) - - (16,777,783)
Balance as at March 31, 2019 1,142,856,961 280,198,647 )] 42,100,000 (207,389) 1,464,948,218
In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

(Firm Registration No.117366W/W-100018)
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G. K. Subramaniam
Partner
(Membership No. 109839)
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Capri Global Housing Finance Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements

1. Corporate Information

Capri Global Housing Finance Limited (the Company) having principle place of business at Registered
office, Tower A, Peninsula Business Park, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400013 is
engaged in the business of providing loans primarily to customers for purchase / construction / repair
and renovation of residential property. The Company holds registration certificate No. 07.0139.16
with National Housing Bank under section 29A of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 dated 18th July
2016

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 were authorised for issue in accordance
with a resolution of the board of directors on April 27, 2019

2. Significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as
amended from time to time). The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the application of fair value measurements required or allowed by relevant
Accounting Standards. Accounting policies have been consistently applied to all periods presented,
unless otherwise stated.

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and the
disclosed amount of contingent liabilities. Areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions are significant to the Company are discussed in Note 6-
Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions.

The financial statements are presented in indian Rupees (INR} and all values are rounded to the
nearest Rupee, except when otherwise indicated.

2.2. Presentation of financial statement
The financial statements of the Company are presented as per Schedule Il {Division lil) of the
Companies Act, 2013, as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA). Financial assets and
financial liabilities are generally reported on a gross basis except when, there is an unconditional
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event
and the parties intend to settle on a net basis in the following circumstances:

i. The normal course of business

ii. The event of default

iii. The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and/or its counterparties

2.3. Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values
at the end of each reporting period as explained in the accounting policies below and the relevant
provisions of the Act.

Effective April 1, 2018, the Company has adopted all the Ind AS and the adoption was carried out in
accordance with Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, with April 1, 2017 as
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Capri Global Housing Finance Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements

the transition date. The transition was carried out from Indian Accounting Principles generally
accepted in India as prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014 (IGAAP), which was the previous GAAP.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly-issued accounting standard
is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting
policy hitherto in use.

2.4 Financial instruments

(i) Classification of financial instruments

The Company classifies its financial assets into the following measurement categories:
1. Financial assets to be measured at amortised cost
2. Financial assets to be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
3. Financial assets to be measured at fair value through profit or loss account

The classification depends on the contractual terms of the financial assets’ cash flows and the

Company'’s business model for managing financial assets which are explained below:

Business model assessment

The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of

financial assets to achieve its business objective.

The Company's business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher

level of aggregated portfolios and is based on observable factors such as:

» How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business
model are evaluated and reported to the entity's key management personnel

» The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within
that business model) and the way those risks are managed

» How managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether the compensation is based
on the fair value of the assets managed or on the contractual cash flows collected)

» The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the Company’s
assessment. The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without
taking 'worst case' or 'stress case’ scenarios into account. If cash flows after initial recognition are
realised in a way that is different from the Company's original expectations, the Company does not
change the classification of the remaining financial assets held in that business model but
incorporates such information when assessing newly originated or newly purchased financial assets
going forward.

The Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI) test

As a second step of its classification process the Company assesses the contractual terms of financial
assets to identify whether they meet the SPPI test.

‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial
recognition and may change over the life of the financial asset (for example, if there are repayments
of principal or amortisation of the premium/discount).

In making this assessment, the Company considers whether the contractual cash flows are consistent
with a basic lending arrangement i.e. interest includes only consideration for the time value of money,
credit risk, other basic lending risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending
arrangement. Where the contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent

[ CHARTEREp
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Capri Global Housing Finance Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements

with a basic lending arrangement, the related financial asset is classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss

The Company classifies its financial liabilities at amortised costs unless it has designated liabilities at
fair value through the profit and loss account or is required to measure liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss such as derivative liabilities.

(i) Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Debt instruments
These financial assets comprise bank balances, receivables, investments and other financial assets.
Debt instruments are measured at amortised cost where they have:
a) contractual terms that give rise to cash flows on specified dates, that represent solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding; and
b) are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by holding to collect contractual
cash flows.

These debt instruments are initially recognised at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs
and subsequently measured at amortised cost.

(iii) Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments
Investments in debt instruments are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
where they have:
a) contractual terms that give rise to cash flows on specified dates, that represent solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding; and
b) are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets.

These debt instruments are initially recognised at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs
and subsequently measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are
included in other comprehensive income within a separate component of equity. Impairment losses
or reversals, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in Profit and Loss.
Upon disposal, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified from equity to the statement of profit and loss.

Equity instruments

Investment in equity instruments that are neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by the Company in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 ‘Business Combination’
applies, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, where an irrevocable
election has been made by management and when such instruments meet the definition of definition
of Equity under Ind AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation. Such classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis. As at reporting date, there are no equity instruments measured at
FVTOCI.
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Capri Global Housing Finance Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements

Amounts presented in other comprehensive income are not subsequently transferred to profit or loss.
Dividends on such investments are recognised in Profit or Loss.

(iv) Items at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Items at fair value through profit or loss comprise:

e Investments (including equity shares) held for trading;

» Items specifically designated as FVTPL on initial recognition; and

« debt instruments with contractual terms that do not represent solely payments of principal and
interest.

Financial instruments held at FVTPL are initially recognised at fair value, with transaction costs
recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. Subsequently, they are measured at fair
value and any gains or losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as they arise.

Financial instruments held for trading

A financial instrument is classified as held for trading if it is acquired or incurred principally for selling
or repurchasing in the near term, or forms part of a portfolio of financial instruments that are managed
together and for which there is evidence of short-term profit taking, or it is a derivative not in a
qualifying hedge relationship.

Trading derivatives and trading securities are classified as held for trading and recognised at fair value.
No Trading derivatives were undertaken until the year ended March 31, 2019

Financial instruments designated as measured at FVTPL

Upon initial recognition, financial instruments may be designated FVTPL. A financial asset may only be
designated at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces measurement or recognition
inconsistencies (i.e. eliminates an accounting mismatch) that would otherwise arise from measuring
financial assets or liabilities on a different basis.

A financial liability may be designated at FVTPL if it eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch or:

¢ if a host contract contains one or more embedded derivatives; or

o if financial assets and liabilities are both managed, and their performance evaluated on a fair value
basis in accordance with a documented risk management or investment strategy.

Where a financial liability is designated at FVTPL, the movement in fair value attributable to changes
in the Company’s own credit quality is calculated by determining the changes in credit spreads above
observable market interest rates and is presented separately in other comprehensive income. As at
the reporting date, the Company has not designated any financial instruments as measured at fair
value through profit or loss.

(v) Debt securities and other borrowed funds

After initial measurement, debt issued, and other borrowed funds are subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on issue
funds, and costs that are an integral part of the EIR.
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Capri Global Housing Finance Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements

(vi) Reclassification

If the business model under which the Company holds financial assets changes, the financial assets
affected are reclassified. The classification and measurement requirements related to the new
category apply prospectively from the first day of the first reporting period following the change in
business model that result in reclassifying the Company’s financial assets. Changes in contractual cash
flows are considered under the accounting policy on Modification and derecognition of financial assets
described below.

(vii) Recognition and Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

Recoagnition:
a) Loans and Advances are initially recognised when the Financial Instruments are transferred to the

customers.

b) Investments are initially recognised on the settlement date.

c) Debt securities, deposits and borrowings are initially recognised when funds reach the Company.

d) Other Financial assets and liabilities are initially recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that
the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. This includes
regular way trades: purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the market place.

Derecognition of financial assets due to substantial modification of terms and conditions:

The Company derecognises a financial asset, such as a loan to a customer, when the terms and
conditions have been renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new loan, with the
difference recognised as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not
already been recorded. The newly recognised loans are classified as Stage 1 for ECL measurement
purposes, unless the new loan is deemed to be Purchased or Originated as Credit Impaired (POCI).

If the modification does not result in cash flows that are substantially different, the modification does
not result in derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows discounted at the original EIR, the
Company records a modification gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already
been recorded.

Derecognition of financial assets other than due to substantial modification
a) Financial assets:
Afinancial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired.
The Company also derecognises the financial asset if it has both transferred the financial asset and the
transfer qualifies for derecognition.
The Company has transferred the financial asset if, the Company has transferred its contractual rights
to receive cash flows from the financial asset
A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:

i The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

ii. The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards

of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset
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The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical ability
to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally
and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer.

When the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards and
has retained control of the asset, the asset continues to be recognised only to the extent of the
Company'’s continuing involvement, in which case, the Company also recognises an associated lia bility.
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Company has retained.

b) Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or
expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the
consideration paid is recognised in Profit or Loss.

{viii) Impairment of financial assets

Overview of the ECL principles

The Company records allowance for expected credit losses for all loans, other debt financial assets not
held at FVTPL, together with financial guarantee contracts, in this section all referred to as ‘financial
instruments. Equity instruments are not subject to impairment under Ind AS 109.

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the lifetime
expected credit loss), unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk since origination, in
which case, the allowance is based on the 12 months’ expected credit loss.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is the portion of Lifetime ECL that represent the ECLs
that result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after
the reporting date.

Both Lifetime ECLs and 12-month ECLs are calculated on either an individual basis or a collective basis.
The Company has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period,
of whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by
considering the change in the risk of default occurring over the remaining life of the financial
instrument. The Company does the assessment of significant increase in credit risk at a borrower level.
If a borrower has various facilities having different past due status, then the highest days past due
(DPD) is considered to be applicable for all the facilities of that borrower.

Based on the above, the Company categorises its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 as described
below:

Stage 1

All exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or
that has low credit risk at the reporting date and that are not credit impaired upon origination are
classified under this stage. The Company classifies all standard advances and advances up to 0-29 days
default under this category. Stage 1 loans also include facilities where the credit risk has improved,
and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 2.
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Stage 2

All exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but are
not credit impaired are classified under this stage. Financial assets past due for 30-89 days are
classified under this stage. Stage 2 loans also include facilities where the credit risk has improved, and
the loan has been reclassified from Stage 3.

Stage 3

All exposures assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred are classified in this stage. For
exposures that have become credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognised and interest revenue is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost (net of provision) rather than
the gross carrying amount. 90 days Past Due is considered as default for classifying a financial
instrument as credit impaif’ed. If an event (for eg. any natural calamity) warrants a provision higher
than as mandated under ECL methodology, the Company may classify the financial asset in Stage 3
accordingly.

Credit-impaired financial assets:

At each reporting date, the company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and
debt financial assets carried at FVTOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when
one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

a) Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

b) A breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

¢) The restructuring of a loan or advance by the company on terms that the company would not
consider otherwise;

d) It is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

e) The disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

ECL on Debt instruments measured at fair value through OCI

The ECLs for debt instruments measured at FVTOCI do not reduce the carrying amount of these
financial assets in the balance sheet, which remains at fair value. Instead, an amount equal to the
allowance that would arise if the assets were measured at amortised cost is recognised in OCl as an
accumulated impairment amount, with a corresponding charge to profit or loss. The accumulated loss
recognised in OCl is recycled to the statement of Profit and Loss upon derecognition of the assets.

The mechanics of ECL:

The Company calculates ECLs based on probability-weighted scenarios to measure the expected cash
shortfalls, discounted at an approximation to the EIR. A cash shortfall is the difference between the
cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the
Company expects to receive.

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:
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Probability of Default {(PD) - The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over
a given time horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the
facility has not been previously derecognised and is still in the portfolio. 12 Month PD is sourced from
CRISIL Default Study Report - 2016 based on the external rating of the borrower. Lifetime PD is
computed using Basic exponentiation formula based on the average residual maturity of the loan.

Exposure at Default (EAD) - The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure including interest
accrued thereon at a future default date and also including the undrawn commitments.

Loss Given Default (LGD) - The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where
a default occurs at a given time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due
and those that the lender would expect to receive, including from the realisation of any collateral. It
is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD.

Forward looking information

While estimating the expected credit losses, the Company reviews macro-economic developments
occurring in the economy and market it operates in. On a periodic basis, the Company analyses if there
is any relationship between key economic trends like GDP, unemployment rates, benchmark rates set
by the Reserve Bank of India, inflation etc. with the estimate of PD, LGD determined by the Company
based on its internal data. While the internal estimates of PD, LGD rates by the Company may not be
always reflective of such relationships, temporary overlays, if any, are embedded in the methodology
to reflect such macro-economic trends reasonably.

Collateral Valuation

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Company seeks to use collateral, where possible.
The collateral comes in various forms, such as the underlying asset financed, cash, securities, letters
of credit/guarantees, etc. However, the fair value of collateral affects the calculation of ECLs. To the
extent possible, the Company uses active market data for valuing financial assets held as collateral.
Other financial assets which do not have readily determinable market values are valued using models.
Collateral repossessed

In its normal course of business, the Company does not physically repossess properties or other assets
in its retail portfolio, but engages its employees to recover funds, to settle outstanding debt. Any
surplus funds are returned to the customers/obligors. As a result of this practice, assets under legal
repossession processes are not recorded on the balance sheet.

(ix) Write-offs

The Company reduces the gross carrying amount of a financial asset when the Company has no
reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. This is
generally the case when the Company determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources
of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subjected to write-offs. Any
subsequent recoveries against such loans are credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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(x) Determination of fair value
On initial recognition, all the financial instruments are measured at fair value. For subsequent
measurement, the Company measures certain categories of financial instruments (as explained in
note. at fair value on each balance sheet date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

i. In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

iil In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or

liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
{
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a
hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarised below:

Level 1 financial instruments - Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted
prices from active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access to at the
measurement date. The Company considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading
activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there
are binding and exercisable price quotes available on the balance sheet date.

Level 2 financial instruments - Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant,
are derived from directly or indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the
instrument’s life. Such inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets,
quoted prices for identical instruments in inactive markets and observable inputs other than quoted
prices such as interest rates and yield curves, implied volatilities, and credit spreads. In addition,
adjustments may be required for the condition or location of the asset or the extent to which it relates
to items that are comparable to the valued instrument. However, if such adjustments are based on
unobservable inputs which are significant to the entire measurement, the Company will classify the
instruments as Level 3.

Level 3 financial instruments - Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant
to the measurement as whole.
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The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

Difference between transaction price and fair value at initial recognition

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is the transaction
price (i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received) unless the fair value of that instrument
is evidenced by comparison with other observable current market transactions in the same instrument
(i.e. without modification or repackaging) or based on a valuation technique whose variables include
only data from observable markets. When such evidence exists, the Company recognises the
difference between the transaction price and the fair value in profit or loss on initial recognition (i.e.
on day one).

When the transaction price of the instrument differs from the fair value at origination and the fair
value is based on a valuation technique using only inputs observable in market transactions, the
Company recognises the difference between the transaction price and fair value in net gain on fair
value changes. In those cases where fair value is based on models for which some of the inputs are
not observable, the difference between the transaction price and the fair value is not recognised at
the initial recognition stage.
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2.5 Revenue from operations

(i) Interest Income
Interest income is recognised by applying (EIR) to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other

than credit-impaired assets and financial assets classified as measured at FVTPL, taking into account
the amount outstanding and the applicable interest rate. Interest income is recognised on non-
performing assets at net of ECL.

The EIR is computed
a. As the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset
b. By considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment,
extension, call and similar options) in estimating the cash flows
c. Including all fees paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts.

Any subsequent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows is recognised in interest income
with the corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets.

{ii) Dividend Income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the payment is established.

(iii) Fees & Commission Income

Fees and commissions are recognised when the Company satisfies the performance obligation, at fair
value of the consideration received or receivable based on a five-step model as set out below, unless
included in the effective interest calculation:

Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or
more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract
that must be met.

Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a
contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which
the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a
customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract
that has more than one performance obligation, the Company allocates the transaction price to each
performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Company
expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation.

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation

(iv) Net gain on Fair value changes

Any differences between the fair values of financial assets classified as FVTPL held by the Company on
the balance sheet date is recognised as an unrealised gain / loss. In cases there is a net gain in the
aggregate, the same is recognised in “Net gains on fair value changes” under Revenue from operations
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and if there is a net loss the same is disclosed as “Net loss on fair value changes” under Expenses in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Similarly, any realised gain or loss on sale of financial instruments measured at FVTPL and debt
instruments measured at FVOCI is recognised in net gain / loss on fair value changes.

However, Net gain / loss on derecognition of financial instruments classified as amortised cost is
presented separately under the respective head in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(V) Loan Processing Fees
Loan processing fees on loans is collected towards processing of loan, this is amortised on EIR basis
over the contractual life of the loan.

2.6 Expenses
(i) Finance costs
Finance costs on borrowings is paid towards availing of loan, is amortised on EIR basis over the
contractual life of loan.
The EIR in case of a financial liability is computed
a. Asthe rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life
of the financial liability to the gross carrying amount of the amortised cost of a financial
liability.
b. By considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument in estimating the cash
flows
¢. Including all fees paid between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts.

Any subsequent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows is recognised in interest expense
with the corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the liability.

Interest expense includes issue costs that are initially recognized as part of the carrying value of the
financial liability and amortized over the expected life using the effective interest method. These
include fees and commissions payable to advisers and other expenses such as external legal costs,
Rating Fee etc, provided these are incremental costs that are directly related to the issue of a financial
liability.

(i) Retirement and other employee benefits

Short term employee benefit

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as
short-term employee benefits. These benefits include short term compensated absences such as paid
annual leave. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in
exchange for the services rendered by employees is recognised as an expense during the period.
Benefits such as salaries and wages, etc. and the expected cost of the bonus/ex-gratia are recognised
in the period in which the employee renders the related service.
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Post-employment employee benefits

a) Defined contribution schemes

All the eligible employees of the Company who have opted to receive benefits under the Provident
Fund and Employees State Insurance scheme, defined contribution plans in which both the employee
and the Company contribute monthly at a stipulated rate. The Company has no liability for future
benefits other than its annual contribution and recognises such contributions as an expense in the
period in which employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for
service received before the Balance Sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit
payable to the scheme is recognised as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the
contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the Balance Sheet
date, then excess is recognised as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example,
a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

b) Defined Benefit schemes

The Company provides for the gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering all employees. The
plan provides for lump sum payments to employees upon death while in employment or on separation
from employment after serving for the stipulated years mentioned under ‘The Payment of Gratuity
Act, 1972’. The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based
on actuarial valuation, carried out by an independent actuary at each Balance Sheet date, using the
Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to an additional
unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final
obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates
used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan are based on the
market yields on Government Securities as at the Balance Sheet date.

Net interest recognized in profit or loss is calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure
the defined benefit obligation to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The actual return on the
plan assets above or below the discount rate is recognized as part of re-measurement of net defined
liability or asset through other comprehensive income. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination
of the discount rate, attrition rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, these liabilities are highly sensitive to changes in
these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The Company fully contributes all ascertained liabilities to The Trustees — “Money matters Financial
Services Limited Employees Group Gratuity Assurance Scheme”. Trustees administer contributions
made to the trust and contributions are invested in a scheme of insurance with the IRDA approved
Insurance Companies.

Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognized immediately in
the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCl in the period
in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent periods.
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Other long-term employee benefits

Company’s liabilities towards compensated absences to employees are accrued on the basis of
valuations, as at the Balance Sheet date, carried out by an independent actuary using Projected Unit
Credit Method. Actuarial gains and losses comprise experience adjustments and the effects of changes
in actuarial assumptions and are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Company presents the Provision for compensated absences under provisions in the Balance
Sheet.

(iii) Rent Expense:

Identification of Lease:

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, is based on the substance
of the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or whether the arrangement conveys a right to use
the asset.

For arrangements entered into prior to 1 April 2017, the Company has determined whether the
arrangement contain lease on the basis of facts and circumstances existing on the date of transition.

Recognition of lease payments:

Rent Expenses representing operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the Statement
of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term, unless the increase is in line with
expected general inflation, in which case lease payments are recognised based on contractual terms.
Leases that do not transfer to the Company substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental to
ownership of the leased items are operating leases.

(iv) Other income and expenses
All Other income and expense are recognized in the period they occur.
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(v) Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of
impairment based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater
of the assets, net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset.

In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. After impairment,
depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

{vi) Taxes

Current Tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from, or paid to, the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute
the amount are those that are enacted, or substantively enacted, by the reporting date in the
countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts. Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are only recognised for temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax
credits if it is probable that future taxable amounts will arise to utilise those temporary differences
and losses. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that
itis no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same
taxable entity.
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Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current
tax. The Company recognizes MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that it is probable
that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which
MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the Company recognizes MAT credit
as an asset in accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Credit Available in respect of
Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income-tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit
to the statement of profit and loss and shown as “MAT Credit Entitlement.” The Company reviews the
MAT Credit Entitlement asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the
Company does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.
Goods and services tax /service tax/value added taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring
expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the goods and services tax/service tax/value added taxes
paid, except:

i. When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the
taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable

ii. When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

2.7 Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentational currency

The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is also functional currency
of the Company and the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company
operates.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Initial recognition:
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

Conversion:

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency, which are outstanding as at the year-
end, are translated at the year-end at the closing exchange rate and the resultant exchange
differences are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non—monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the spot exchange rates as at the date of recognition.

2.8 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise the net amount of short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash (short-term deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less) and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. They are held for the
purposes of meeting short-term cash commitments (rather than for investment or other purposes).
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For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-
term deposits, as defined above.

2.9 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment, (if any). The total cost of assets comprises its purchase price, freight, duties,
taxes and any other incidental expenses directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the management.
Changes in the expected useful life are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or
methodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of tangible asset are added to its gross value only if it
increases the future benefits of the existing asset, beyond its previously assessed standards of
performance and cost can be measured reliably. Other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed
off as and when incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated using the written down value method to write down the cost of property
and equipment to their residual values over their estimated useful lives which is in line with the
estimated useful life as specified in Schedule Il of the Act. The estimated useful lives are as prescribed
by Schedule Il of the Act. The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property,
plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate.

Property plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognised in
other income / expense in the statement of profit and loss in the year the asset is derecognised. The
date of disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is the date the recipient obtains control
of that item in accordance with the requirements for determining when a performance obligation is
satisfied in Ind AS 115.

2.10 Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably, and it is probable that
the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the Company.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of an
intangible asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable expenditure on making the
asset ready for its intended use and net of any trade discounts and rebates. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with
finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year-end.
Changes in the expected useful life, or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the asset, are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or
methodology, as appropriate, which are then treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
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amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is presented as a separate line item in the
statement of profit and loss. Amortisation on assets acquired/sold during the year is recognised on a
pro-rata basis to the Statement of Profit and Loss from / upto the date of acquisition/sale.

Amortisation is calculated using the straight—line method to write down the cost of intangible assets
to their residual values over their estimated useful lives. Intangible assets comprising of software are
amortised on a straight-line basis over a period of 3 years, unless it has a shorter useful life.

Gains or losses from derecognition of intangible assets are measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

2.11 Investment Property

Properties, held to earn rentals and/or capital appreciation are classified as investment property and
measured and reported at cost, including transaction costs. For transition to Ind AS, the company has
elected to adopt as deemed cost, the carrying value of investment property as per Indian GAAP less
accumulated depreciation and cumulative impairment (if any) as on the transition date of April 1,
2017.

Depreciation is recognised using straight line method so as to write off the cost of the investment
property less their residual values over their useful lives specified in Schedule Il to the Act, or in case
of assets where the useful life was determined by technical evaluation, over the useful life so
determined. Depreciation method is reviewed at each financial year end to reflect the expected
pattern of consumption of the future benefits embodied in the investment property. The estimated
useful life and residual values are also reviewed at each financial year end and the effect of any change
in the estimates of useful life/residual value is accounted on prospective basis.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of property is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
in the same period.

2.12 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

When the effect of the time value of money is material, the enterprise determines the level of
provision by discounting the expected cash flows at a pre-tax rate reflecting the current rates specific
to the liability. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss
net of any reimbursement.

2.13 Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that
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Capri Global Housing Finance Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements

an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be
measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence
in the financial statements.

2.14 Earning Per Share
The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Ind AS 33 on Earnings
per share. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting preference dividend and attributable taxes) by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable
to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are
deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. In
computing the dilutive earnings per share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive and that either
reduces the earnings per share or increases loss per share are included.

2.15. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires the management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosure and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at
the end of the reporting period. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are
revised, and future periods are affected. Although these estimates are based on the management’s
best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or
liabilities in future periods.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in
applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
financial statements is included in the following notes:

2.16 Impairment of loans portfolio

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires judgement,
in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when
determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These
estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in different levels of
allowances.

It has been the Company’s policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience
and adjust when necessary.

2.17 Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method

The Company’s EIR methodology, recognises interest income / expense using a rate of return that
represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioural life of loans
given / taken and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at various stages and
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Capri Global Housing Finance Limited
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other characteristics of the product life cycle (including prepayments and penalty interest and
charges).

This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and
life-cycle of the instruments, as well expected changes to India’s base rate and other fee
income/expense that are integral parts of the instrument

2.18 First time adoption

These financial statements, for the year ended 31 March 2019, are the first financial statements the
Company has prepared in accordance with Ind AS. For periods up to and including the year ended 31
March 2018, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with accounting standards
notified under section 133 of the Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP or previous GAAP).

Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial statements which comply with Ind AS applicable for
periods ending on 31 March 2019, together with the comparative period data as at and for the year
ended 31 March 2018, as described in the summary of significant accounting policies. In preparing
these financial statements, the Company’s opening balance sheet was prepared as at 1 April 2017, the
Company’s date of transition to Ind AS. Since the Company did not have significant transaction as at
the transition date, the Company has not availed Exemptions under INDAS 101.
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Note- SH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Amount in Rs.

(i) Cash on hand 30,794 1,072 | -
(i) Balances with banks:
- In Current Accounts 56,53,50,151 34,52,603 66,85,022
- In Deposit accounts with original maturity of 3 months or less 67,00,00,000 - -
Total 1,23,60,80,945 35,33,675 66,85,022
Note-4 BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
i Amountvin Rs.
L o =
In other Deposit accbunts -

- original Maturity more than 3 months (Refer note below) 7,79,96,078 9,70,04,783 23,40,92,489
Total 7,79,96,078 9,70,04,783 23,40,92,489
The Fixed deposits have been kept as lien with banks against term loan facility availed by company.

Note-5 TRADE RECEIVABLE.

Amount in Rs.

Unsecured, Considered good
-Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the due date of payment - - 11,000
-QOutstanding for a period less than six months +1,28,76,480 45,94,526 10,27,587
Total 4,28,76,480 45,94,526 10,38,587

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 90 days. The Company has assessed that, the impact of
impairment of trade receivables is immaterial and hence no impairment loss has been provided.

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any
trade or other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.
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Note-7 INVESTMENTS

- n — Amount in Rs.
\ ;f’ - A4 L '} ¥
Mutual funds - - 45,07,017
Equity Shares (1,55,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each in
Credit Analysis & Research Limited) - - 26,23,68,500
Total - - 26,68,75,517
(i) Investments outside India - - -
(i) Investments in India - - 26,68,75,517
Total - - 26,68,75,517
Note- THER FI AL ASSET.

_ - \ Amount in Rs.
Security Deposits 66,52,361 54,18,069 3,95,000
Total 66,52,361 54,18,069 3,95,000




Advance Tax (net of provision for tax)

66,65,447

11,65,687

(Amount in Rs.)

61,87,346 |

[Total 66,65,447 | 11,65,687 | 61,87,346 |

N 10 DEFERR AX

The major com| nts of deferred tax assets and liabilities are : Amount in Rs.
a) Depreciation 27,07,099 - - 13,772 40,770 -
b) Provisions for Loans 38,48,541 - 12,42,800 - - 57,260
¢) Provision for Employee Benefits 12,07,260 - 4,25,620 - 77,295 -
d) Carry Forward of Losses - - 29,09,109 - 1,46,59,400 -
e) Amortised Finance Cost - 1,04,91,644 - 35,29,404 -
f) Amortised Fees Income 4,10,35,617 - 1,42,80,361 - 3,18,065 -
q) Others 1,32,528 - 14,736 21,049 - 1,657
q) MAT Credit Entitlement 36,25,150 - 2,58,52,627 - _ .
Total 5,25,56,196 1,04,91,644 4,47,25,253 35,64,224 1,50,95,529 58,917
Net Deferred Tax Asset 4,20,64,553 4,11,61,029 1,50,36,612

Note 11- INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

g Particula
Investment Properties*

1,09,73,681

1,00,73,681 |

1,09,73,681

1,09,73,681 |

1,09,73,681 |

1,09,73,681 |

=

o

Balahce at the beginning of the yea

28

(Amount in Rs.)

1,09,73,681.00 1,09,73,681.00
Additions during the year - -
Disposals - -
Balance at the end of the year 1,09,73,681.00 1,09,73,681.00

*Investment properties are in the nature of freehold land and the fair value of properties is Rs. 1,72,38,587/-




Note-12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment (Amount in Rs.}

 Compyter Hardwars 1,69,69,008 89,44,614 - 2,59,13622 | 43,3990 | 11159320 1,54,99,224 1,04,14,398 1,26,29,104
[Furniture and Fixtures. 72,53,376 13,50,121 239,567 8363930 7,68,957 19,09,257 65312 26,12,902 57,51,027 64,84,419
Office Equioments 49,63,231 35,90,473 78433 85.25,912 7,47.385 30,13,447 10,766 37,50,065 47,75,146 42,15.846
Vehicles 10,77,338 2013288 | 10,77,338 013,268 3,90,786 505442 425316 470912 1542,376 686,552 |
(Electrical Instaliation 3,02,300 - - 3,02,300 46,643 68,008 - 1,14,651 1,87,649 2,55,657 |
[Total 3,05,65.253 1,5898496 | 13,45398 | 4,51,18352 | 62,93,675 | 16655474 | 501,394 | 2,2447,755 | _2,2670,597 2,42,71578

Other Intangible assets :

|Software 22,27,662 12,31,526 - 34,59,188 5,52,138 9,82,037 - 15,34,178 19.25.013 16.75.504
{Total 22,27,662 12,31,526 b 34,59,188 5,52,138 9,82,037 - 15,34,175 1925013 16,75,524
Property, plant and equipment

[Computer Hardware 16,69,931 1,52,99,077 160,690,008 | 13,77,515 29,62,389 43,359,904 126,293,104 2,92,416 |
[Furniture and Fixtures - 72,53,376 72,53,376 7,68,957 7,68,957 64,84,419 -
[Office Equioments 13,400 49,45,831 4963231 438 7,46,947 7,47,385 42,15,846 12,962
Vehicles 10,77,338 10,77,338 91,270 2,99,516 3,90,786 6,86,552 9,86,068 |
[Electrical Installation - 3,02,300 - 3,02,300 46,643 46,643 2,55,657 -
[Total 27,60, 2,78,04,584 - 3,0565253 | 1469223 | 48,24.452 - 62.93,675 24271578 | 12,91,

Other Intangible assets :

= 3

[Software 581,150 16,46,512 - 22,27,662 1,51,761 4,00,376 - 5,52,137 16,75,525 4,29,389

Total 581150 16,46512 B 22.27.662 | 151,761 490376 : 552,137 16,75,525 4,29389 |




Note-13 OTHER NON FINANCIAL ASSETS

Prepaid Expenses 23,77,521 37,44,474 77,994
Other Assets 11,25,334 26,75,461 60,000
GST / Service Tax Input Credit - 26,24 911 7,25,320
Deferred lease rentals 20,30,909 24,01,701 -
Total 55,33,764 1,14,46,547 8,63,314
Note-14 TRADE PAYABLES
TRADE PAYABLES
Amount in Rs.

L . L e e

g dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises* - - -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 2,13,10,564 1,98,84,340 1,59,858
small enterprises
Accrued Employee Benefit Expense 2,00,00,003 90,00,000 16,32,417
Total 4,13,10,567 2,88,84,340 17,92,275

*The information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the
extent such parties have been identified on the basis of Information available with the Company. The amount of principal and interest outstanding

during the year is given below:-

1 5E B =
a) Amount outstanding but not due as at year end

b) Amount due but unpaid as at the year end

c) Amounts paid after appointed date during the year

d) Amount of interest accrued and unpaid as at year end

e) The amount of further interest due and payable even in the
succeeding year

Total
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THER THAN DEBT SECURITIES) - M
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Amount in Rs.

Term Loans from Banks*

6,76,37,42,756

1,08,63,47,254

Total

6,76,37,42,756

1,08,63,47,254

Borrowings in India

6,76,37,42,756

1,08,63,47,254

Total

6,76,37,42,756

1,08,63,47,254

*First pari-passu charge by way of hypothecation of the company’s loan receivables / book debts with asset cover of 1.10 times.

Terms of repayment, nature of security & rate of interest in case of Borrowings (Othe

r than Debt Securities)

Name of Security

Maturity date

Terms of repayment

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

As at April 1,
2017

Union Bank of India - Term Loan

November 30, 2025

Repayable in 28 Equal
Quarterly Installment starting
from 28 Feb 2019

50,00,00,000

20,00,00,000

State Bank Of India - Term Loan

December 31, 2025

Repayable in 28 Equal
Quarterly Installment starting
from 31 March 2019

50,00,00,000

50,00,00,000

YES Bank - Term Loan

April 25, 2023

Repayable in 20 Equal
Quarterly Installment starting
from 31 March 2018

40,00,00,000

5,00,00,000

Bank of Maharashtra - Term Loan

December 31, 2024

Repayable in 24 Equal
Quarterly Instaliment starting
from 15 May 2019

75,00,00,000

10,00,00,000

Andhra Bank - Term Loan

February 27, 2026

Repayabie in 28 Equal
Quarterly Installment starting
from 28 May 2019

25,00,00,000

5,00,00,000

Vijaya Bank - Term Loan

February 28, 2026

Repayable in 28 Equal
Quarterly Installment starting
from 31 May 2019

30,00,00,000

10,00,00,000

United Bank - Term Loan

February 28, 2026

Repayable in 28 Equal
Quarterly Installment starting
from 31 May 2019

25,00,00,000

10,00,000

UCO Bank - Term Loan

February 28, 2026

Repayable in 28 Equal
Quarterly Installment starting
from 31 May 2019

50,00,00,000

10,00,00,000

Punjab Sindh Bank - Term Loan

June 14, 2026

Repayable in 28 Equal
Quarterly Installment starting
from Sept 2019

25,00,00,000

YES Bank - Term Loan 2

December 31, 2023

Repayable in 20 Equal
Quarterly Installment starting
from Nov 2018

25,00,00,000

YES Bank - Term Loan 3

December 31, 2023

Repayable in 20 Equal
Quarterly Instaliment starting
from April 2019

25,00,00,000

YES Bank - Term Loan 4

October 19, 2023

Repayable in 20 Equal
Quarterly Installment starting
from Feb 2019

25,00,00,000

YES Bank - Term Loan 5

October 19, 2023

Repayable in 20 Equal
Quarterly Installment starting
from Feb 2019

25,00,00,000

Indian Bank - Term Loan

August 15, 2026

Repayable in 28 Equal
Quarterly Instaliment starting
from Nov 2019

75,00,00,000

Union Bank of India - Term Loan 2

August 30, 2025

Repayable in 24 Equal
Quarterly Installment starting
from Nov 2019

20,00,00,000

Union Bank of India - Term Loan 2

September 30, 2025

Repayable in 24 Equal
Quarterly Instaliment starting
from Dec 2019

50,00,00,000

Union Bank of India - Term Loan 2

November 30, 2025

Repayable in 24 Equal
Quarterly Installment starting
from Feb 2020

40,00,00,000

Union Bank of India - Term Loan 2

December 31, 2025

Repayable in 24 Equal
Quarterly Installment starting
from Mar 2020

40,00,00,000

The rate of interest on above Term Loan is in the range of 8.80% p.a to 10.55% p.a
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Note-16 OTHER FINANCTAL LTABILITIES

Interest Accrued but not due on borowmgs

244,920 - -
Book Overdraft 28,67,14,851 44,71,51,499 3,19,97,579
Total 28,69,59,771 44,71,51,499 3,19,97,579

Note-17 CURRENT TAX LIABILITIE

Provision for Income Tax (Net of Advance tax)

54,72,849

(Amount in Rs.)

Total

54,72,849

Note-18 PROVISIONS

Provision on non-fund exposure

31,21,624 9,82,032 2,065
Provision for Employee Benefits
- Gratuity 19,88,930 13,07,076 9,51,576
- Compensated Absences 41,45,812 25,47,597 2,65,437
Total 92,56,366 48,36,705 12,19,078
Note-19 OTHER NON-FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
(Amount in Rs.)
S b b 358
Other Payables
Statutory Remittances 1,52,57,525 84,11,384 5,42,308
Advance received from customer 2.47.30.518 - -
Total 3,99,88,043 84,11,384 5,42,308




AUTHORISED
6,50,00,000 Equity Shares of 10 each
(Previous Year 6,50,00,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each)

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND FULLY PAID UP
6,07,14,280 Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each
(Previous Year 3,69,04,760 Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each)

Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:

Equity shares outstanding as at the beginning of the

65,00,00,000 65,00,00,000 25,00,00.000
65,00,00,000 _ 65,00,00,000| _25,00.00,000!
60,71,42,800 36,90,47.600 25,00,00,000
0.71,42,800(__ 36,90,47,600] 25,00.00,000]

year 3,69,04,760 36,90,47,600 2,50,00,000 25,00,00,000 2,50,00,000 25,00,00,000
Issued during the year - Rights issue 2,38,09,520 23,80,95,200 1,19,04,760 11,90,47,600 - -
Equity shares outstanding as at the end of the year 6,07,14,280 60,71,42,800 3,69,04,760 36,90,47,600 2,50,00,000 25,00,00,000

Details of shareholders holding more than 5 percent shares in the Company are given below:

Capri Global Capital Limited ( Holding Company )

6,07,14,280

100.00

3,69,04,760

100.00

2,50,00,000

100.00%

Terms/Rights attached to equity shares:

1. The Company has only one class of equity share having a face value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitied to one vote per share.

2. During the year the Company has issued 23,809,520 equity shares having face value of Rs. 10/- each at Rs. 42/- per share to its Holding Company.
3. During the year ended 31 March 2019, the amount of dividend recognized as distributions to equity shareholders was Rs.NIL (31 March 2018 Rs.NIL) (31 March 2017

Rs.NIL).

4. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential
amounts. The distribution will be proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.




Statutory Reserve under Section 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987
Balance as per the last Financial Statements 2,81,00,000 70,00,000 50,00,000
Add: Amount transferred from surplus balance in the Statement of Profit and Loss 1,40,00,000 2,11,00,000 20,00,000
Closing balance 4,21,00,000 2,81,00,000 70,00,000
s ities Premi
Balance as per the last financial statements 38,09,52,321 - -
Additions/(Deletions) during the year 76,19,04,640 38,09,52,321 -
Closing balance 1,14,28,56,961 38,09,52,321 -
Other reserves & surplus
Employee stock option outstanding reserves - 27,77,783 2,23,902
Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening Balance 22,44,29,308 31,51,84,972 16,88,11,092
Profit / (Loss) for the year: 6,98,23,951 (6,97,10,276) -
Less: Transfer to Statutory Reserve (1,40,00,000) (2,11,00,000) (20,00,000)
Add/tess: Ind AS adjustments on transition - - 14,83,73,880
Other Comprehensive Income (2,62,001) 54,612 -
27,99,91,258 22,44,29,308 31,51,84,972
TOTAL 1,46,49,48,219 63,62,59,412 32,24,08,874

Securities Premium

Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in

accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Statutory Reserve pursuant to Section 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987

Every housing finance institution which is a company shall create a reserve fund and transfer therein a sum not less than twenty per cent of its profit every year as
disclosed in the profit and loss account and before any dividend is declared. Explanation.—A housing finance institution creating and maintaining any special reserve in
terms of clause (viii) of sub-section (1) of section 36 of the Income-tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) may take into account any sum transferred by it for the year to such special
reserve for the purposes of this sub-section. For the previous comparative periods, company has maintained transfer to statutory reserve on profit calculated under

erstwhile GAAP.

Employee stock option outstanding reserves

This reserve is used to record the employee stock options which are outstanding. The said reserve will be utilised for issuance of share to the eligible employees.
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Note-22 INTEREST INCOME

Interest on Loans 67,17,02,354 9,46,38,023
Interest on deposits 71,04,045 1,23,19,616
Total 67,88,06,399 10,69,57,639
Note-23 FEE INCOME

Amount in Rs.

Application Fees

0
3,75,89,721

[Total

3,75,89,721

Note -24 NET GAIN ON FAIR VALUE CHANGES

(A) Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss

(i) On trading portfolio

- Investments

2,16,67,424

(ii) On financial instruments designated at fair value through
profit or loss

(B) Others

(C) Total Net gain on fair value changes

2,16,67,424

(D) Fair Value change:

-Realised
-Unrealised

2,16,67,424

Total Net gain on fair value changes

2,16,67,424

Note 25 OTHER OPERATING INCOME

g
I

Advertisement Income 10,84,13,000 3,36,89,000
|Legal Charges Received 1,11,41,633 13,93,752
Other charges from customers 3,11,13,099 41,81,258
Total 15,06,67,732 3,92,64,010

Note- 26 OTHER INCOME

Bd dets recovered

Others

4,429

Total

2,26,717
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(A) Net loss on financial instruments at fair value through profi
or loss
(i) On trading portfolio
- Investments - 62,97,204
(ii) On financial instruments designated at fair value through
profit or loss - _
{B) Others - -
{C) Total Net loss on fair value changes - 62,97,204
(D) Fair Value change :
-Realised - 14,29,54,757
-Unrealised - (14,92,51,961)
Total Net loss on fair value changes - 62,97,204

Salaries and ,87,89,705
Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds 13,36,175
Staff Training and Welfare Expenses 78,59,757 53,15,506
Share Based Payments to employees (6,48,535) 30,46,347
Total 20,09,64,349 10,84,87,733

During the year ended March 31, 2019 the company has cancelled the ESOPs on account of resignation of employees and

accordinaly the provision for ESOP expense has been reversed.

Note-31 OTHER EXPENSES

Auditors' Remuneration 4,00,000 3,27,000
Bad Debts Written Off 9,934 -
Banking Charges 3,85,295 2,11,724
Business Development Expenses 13,84,385 5,70,187
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Expenses 10,72,000 -
Directors’ Fees and Commission 13,32,525 2,91,600
Electricity Charges 60,87,333 24,14,531
General Expenses 84,64,655 72,84,141
Insurance Charges 18,48,291 12,97,087
Legal Expenses 7,57,68,702 2,17,56,614
Manpower Qutsourcing Expenses 17,60,617 19,57,046
Membership & Subscription Expenses 8,15,746 1,37,627
Postage, Telephone and Fax 1,15,76,011 40,70,694
Printing and Stationery 71,86,474 23,64,186
Rent 2,42,38,927 1,44,33,464
Repairs and Maintenance - Other than Buildings 8,96,505 20,76,585
Software Expenses 33,02,974 31,56,530
Filing & Other Fees to ROC 2,43,221 20,24,671
Service Fee Expenses 1,99,20,142 1,39,13,498
Travelling and Conveyance 1,37,59,487 54,63,302
Miscellaneous Expenses 4,92,105 4,24,425
Total 18,09,45,329 8,41,74,912
Disclosures
1. Payments to auditors (Net of tax)
(Amount in Rs.
For the year ended March | For the year ended March
Particulars 31, 2019 31, 2018

a) For audit 3,00,000 2,18,000
b) For taxation matters 1,00,000 1,09,000
¢) For other services = =
Total 4,00,000 3,27,000

2. Expenditure incurred for CSR

(Amount in Rs.)

For the year ended March | For the year ended March
Particulars 31, 2019 31, 2018
Gross Amount Required to be spent during the year 10,71,672 -
Amount spent during the year on CSR 10,72,000 -




Note 32 -OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurement loss (gain) on defined benefit plan (3,62,983) 75,661
Income tax relating to these items 1,00,982 (21,049)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax {2,62,001) 54,612
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Note 35- Deferred Tax

The following table shows deferred tax recorded in the balance sheet and changes recorded in the Income tax expense:

(Amount in Rs.)

Deferred Tax
Particulars Deferred Tax Assets Liabilities Income Statement 0Cl1
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2019 2018-19 2018-19
Provisions 12,07,260 - 7,81,640 -
Depreciation 27,07,099 - 27,20,871 -
Financial Instruments at FVTPL - - -14,736 -
Impairment allowance for financial assets 38,48,541 - 26,05,741 -
Unamortised Borrowing Cost - 1,04,91,644 -69,62,240 -
Unamortised Fees and Commission 4,10,35,617 - 2,67,55,256 -
Other Temporary Differences 31,546 - 31,546 -
Other Comprehensive Income 1,00,982 - - 1,00,982
Carry Forward Losses - - -29,09,109 -
MAT Credit Entitlement 36,25,150 - - -
Total 5,25,56,196 1,04,91,644 2,30,08,970 1,00,982
(Amount in Rs.)
Deferred Tax Deferred Tax
Particulars Assets Liabilities Income Statement 0CI
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2018 2017-18 2017-18
Provisions 4,25,620 - 3,48,325 -
Depreciation - 13,772 -54,542 -
Impairment allowance for financial assets 12,42,800 - 13,00,060 -
Carry Forward Losses 29,09,109 - -1,17,50,291 -
Financial Instruments at FVTPL 14,736 21,049 37,443 21,049
Unamortised borrowing Cost - 35,29,404 -35,29,404 -
Unamortised Fees and Commission 1,42,80,361 - 1,39,62,296 -
MAT Credit Entitlement 2,58,52,627 - - -
Prior Period Adjustments - - 1,65,07,616 -
Total 4,47,25,253 35,64,225 1,68,21,504 21,049
{Amount in Rs.)
Deferred Tax Deferred Tax
Particulars Assets Liabilities
April 1, 2017 April 1, 2017
Provisions 77,295 -
Depreciation 40,770 -
Impairment allowance for financial assets - 57,260
Carry Forward Losses 1,46,59,400 -
Financial Instruments at FVTPL - 1,657
Unamortised Fees and Commission 3,18,065 -
Total 1,50,95,529 58,917

Deffered Tax Assets / Liabilities are calculated by applying applicable effective tax rate of 29.12%
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(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars As at April 1, 2018 Cash Flow As at March 31, 2019
Borrowings other than debt securities 1,08,63,47,254 5,67,73,95,502 6,76,37,42,756
Total liabilities from ﬁnancing activities 11081631471254 51671731951502 61761371421756
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(Amount in Rs.)

Note 38 -Reconciliation of Equity as previously reported under IGAAP to Ind AS

Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at April 1, 2017
Total Equity as reported under the previous GAAP (A) 1,02,95,78,456 42,38,11,092
(B) Ind AS Adjustments on account of:

a. Fair Valuation of Investments through Profit and Loss - 14,92,50,243
b. Reversal of IGAAP loan provision 67,80,532 2,60,049
c. Amc‘)rtifation of processing fees received/paid as per -3,67,67,516 -10,92,256
effective interest rate

d. Amortisation of deferred lease rentals till transition -50,605 -

e. ECL on Loans -42,67,857 -63,416
f. Deferred tax asset(net) 1,00,34,003 2,43,161
Total adjustment to Equity (B) -2,42,71,444 14,85,97,782
Total Equity under Ind AS (A+B) 1,00,53,07,012 57,24,08,874




N - Reconciliation Statement of Profit & Loss reviously r ed under IGAAP to Ind AS

Particulars

Re;él{ue from 6berations
Interest Income 14,45,51,878 (3,75,94,238) 10,69,57,639
Fees and commission Income 1,39,37,525 (55,75,010) 83,62,515
{Other Operating Income - 3,92,64,010 3,92,64,010
Total Revenue from Operations 15,84,89,403 (39,05,238)| 15,45,84,164
Other Income 18,89,78,062 (18,89,63,373) 14,689
Total Income 34,74,67,465 (19,28,68,611)| 15,45,98,853
Expenses
Finance costs 2,86,08,013 (1,21,20,205) 1,64,87,808
Impairment on financial instruments
(Expected Credit Loss) 65,67,279 (23,16,041) 42,51,238
Net Loss on fair value changes - - 62,97,204
Employee benefit expense 10,62,97,375 21,90,359 10,84,87,733
Depreciation and amortisation expense 52,24 828 - 52,24 828
Other expenses 8,62,42,697 - 8,41,74,912
Total expenses 23,29,40,192 (1,22,45,887)| 22,49,23,723
Profit before exceptional items and Tax 11,45,27,274 (18,06,22,724) (7,03,24,870)
Profit before tax 11,45,27,274 (18,06,22,724)] (7,03,24,870)
Tax expense

- Current tax (MAT) - - -

- Deferred tax 91,97,298 (98,11,890) (6,14,592)
Total tax expense 91,97,298 (98,11,890) (6,14,592)
Net Profit After Tax 10,53,29,976 (17,08,10,834)| (6,97,10,276)

1. Under previous GAAP, loans were carried at cost whereas under IND AS loans are measured based on entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. The loans that meet the business
model and contractual cash flow tests are measured at amortised cost and interest income is recognised as per effective interest
rate method.

2. Under Previous GAAP, borrowings were recorded at cost and transaction costs were charged to Statement of Profit and Loss on a
systematic basis over the tenure of the borrowing. Under Ind AS, transaction cost incurred towards origination of borrowings is
required to be deducted from the carrying amount of borrowings on initial recognition. These cost are recognised in the Statement

of Profit and Loss over the tenure of the borrowing as part of interest expense by applying effective interest rate method.

3. Under the previous GAAP, remeasurements i.e. actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets, excluding amounts
included in the net interest expense on the net defined benefit liability were forming part of the profit or loss for the year. Under
Ind AS, these remeasurements are recognized in other comprehensive income instead of profit or loss.

4. Under previous GAAP, provision for loans was calculated using incurred loss model. Under Ind AS, the provision on financial
assets and commitments, needs to be calculated using the expected credit loss model.

5. Indian GAAP (NHB Guidelines) required creation of deferred tax using the income statement approach, which focuses on
differences between taxable profits and accounting profits for the period specially in case of Statutory Reserve under Section 29C
of the Nationa! Housing Bank Act, 1987. Ind-AS 12 requires entities to account for deferred taxes using the balance sheet approach,
which focuses on temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the balance sheet and its tax base.
It also includes impact of deferred tax arising on account of transition to IND AS.




40.1

40.2

{Amount in Rs.)

Financial instruments by category

" Particudars - As at March 31, 2019 |As at March 31, 2018 April 1, 2017
Financial assets
Investments - - -
- Equity instruments - - 26,23,68,500 -
- Mutual funds - - 45,07,017 -
Trade receivables 4,28,76,480 45,94,526 ~ 10,38,587
Loans 7,76,47,93,851 2,37,96,93,095 - 6,40,91,712
Cash and cash equivalents 1,23,60,80,945 35,33,675 - 66,85,022
Bank Balances other than above 7,79,96,078 9,70,04,783 - 23,/40,92,489
Security deposits 66,52,361 54,18,069 - 3,95,000
Total financial assets 9,12,83,99,714 2,49,02,44,147 26,68,75,517 30,63,02,809
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 6,76,37,42,756 1,08,63,47,254 - -
Trade payables 4,13,10,567 2,88,84,340 - 17,92,275
Other financial liability 28,69,59,771 44,71,51,499 - 3,19,97,579
Total financial Habilities 7,09,20,13,093 1,56,23,83,093 - 3,37,89,854

Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b)
measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value,
the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows undemneath the table.

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3 1,23,60,80,945 1,23.60,80,945 - - 1,23,60,80,94
Bank Balances other than above 4 7,79,96,078 7,79,96,078 - - 7,79,96,07
Receivables 5 - - - -
Trade Receivables 4,28,76,480 - - 4,28,76,480 4,28,76,4¢
Loans 6 7,76,47,93,851 - - 7,76,47,93,851 7,76,47,93,85
Loans to employees 13,93,457 - - 13,93,457 13,934
Security deposits 8 66,52,361 66,52,361 66,52,3€
Total financial assets 9,12,97,93,172 1,31,40,77,023 - 7,81,57,16,149 9,12,97,93,171
Financial Liabilities
Trade Payable 14 4,13,10,567 - 4,13,10,567 4,13,10,5€
Borrowings 15 6,76,37,42,756 - - 6,76,37,42,756 6,76,37,42,7¢
Other financial liability 16 28,69,59,771 - - 28,69,59,771 28,69,59.77
Total financial liabilities 7,09,20,13,094 - - 7,09,20,13,094 7,09,20,13,09
P 4%, PN g oY
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3 35,333,675 35.33,675 - - 35,33,67
Bank Balances other than above 4 9,70,04,783 9,70,04,783 - - 9,70,04,7¢8
Receivables 5 - - - - -
Trade Receivables 45,94,526 - - 45,94,526 45,94,52
Loans 6 2,37,96,93,094 - - 2,37,96,93,094 2,37,96,93,0¢
Loans to employees 3,02,083 - - 3,02,083 3,02,08
Security deposits 8 54,18,069 - - 54,18,069 54,18,0€
Total financial assets 2,49,05,46,230 10,05,38,458 - 2,39,00,07,772 2,49,05,46,23
Financial Liabilities
Trade payable 14 2,88,84,340 - - 2,88,84,340 2,88,84,34
Borrowings 15 1,08,63,47,254 - - 1,08,63,47,254 1,08,63,47,25
Other financial liabilities 16 44,71,51,49% - - 44,71,51,499 44,71,51,4¢
Total financiat liabilities 1,56,23,83,093 - - 1,56,23,83,093 1,56,23,83,09
Total
Financial assets
Financial Investments at FVTPL
Listed eguity investments 7 26,23,68,500 26,23,68,500 - - 26,23,68,50
Mutuat funds 45,07,017 45,07,017 - - 45,07,01
Total financial assets 26,68,75,517 26,68,75,517 - - 26,68,75,51
Financial liabilities
Total financial liabilities




Assels ami labilities which are measured at i Fair Value

Wmmrmmkmm Notes Carrying Amount Level 1 Lovel 2 Level 3 Total
\disclosed . = .

[As at Apeil 1, 2017

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 3 66,85,022 66,85,022 - 66,85,02
Bank Balances other than above 4 23,40,92,489 23,40,92,489 - 23,40,92,48
Receivables ) - - -

Trade Receivables 10,38,587 - 10,38,587 10,38,5¢
Loans 6 6,40,91,711 - 6,40,91,711 6,40,91,71
Loans to employees - - - -
Security deposits 8 3,95,000 - 3,95,000 3,95,0C
Total financial assets 30,63,02,809 24,07,77,511 6,55,25,298 30,63,02,80
Financial Liabilities

Trade payable 14 17,92,275 17,92,275 17,92,27
Borrowings 15 - - -

Other financial liability 16 3,19,97,579 3,19,97,579 3,19,97,57
Total financial liabilities 3,37,89,854 - - 3,37,89,854 3,37,89,85

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments, traded bonds and mutual funds that have quoted price. The fa
value of all equity instruments (including bonds) which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period. The mutual funds are valued using tt

closing NAV.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-the- counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques whic
maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument

included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities, continger

consideration and indemnification asset included in level 3.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, capital creditors and cash and cash equivalents are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature.

The company gives loan at floating rate with terms inclusing the fixed interest rate for initial period. The fair value of these loans approximates the Carrying amount.

For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values.

CHARTERED
ACCOUNTANTS
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Note- 42 Emploves Stock Option Plan

The company had granted 5,00,000 Employee Stock option(ESOP) under the Employee Stock Option Scheme 2017 (ESOP 2017) to an employee during F.Y
2016-17 spread over a period of 5 years, During the FY 2018-19 these ESOPs have been cancelled, provision of Rs. 27,77,783/- which has been provided in the
earlier years has been reversed.

The Capri Global Capital Ltd (Holding Company) has granted 197,500 ESOPs to the employees of the Company. The ESOPs will be vested as per below
mentioned schedule. A charge of Rs. 21,31,048 /- is recoginised in the statement of Profit & Loss during the year ended March 31, 2019 (Year ended March 31,
2018 Rs. 4,92,465/-).

Financial Year in which options will vest ESOPs equivalent to number of equity shares of face vaiue of Rs 10/- each
2020-. 13,250
202 2 54,750
2022 69,750
2023 59,750
Note -43 Segment Information (IND-AS 108)
Operating Segment

The Company operates mainly in the business segment of fund based financing activity. All other activities revolve around the main business. Further, all
activities are carried out within India. As such, there are no separate reportable segments as per the provisions of IND AS 108 on ‘Operating Segments’.

Note 44- Related party disclosures

C of key

personne! of the Company

Key management personnel are those individuals who have the authority and responsibility for planning and exercising power to directly or indirectly control the
activities of the Company and its employees. The Company includes the members of the Board of Directors which include independent directors (and its sub-
committees) and Executive Committee to be key management personne! for the purposes of Ind AS 24 Related Party Disclosures.

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Short—term empioyee benefits 8,90,323 -
Total 8,90,323 -
Transactions with key of the C:

The following table provides the total amount of transactions, which have been entered into with key management personnel for the relevant financial year:

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Director Sitting Fees 12,22,500 2,70,000
Total 12,22,500 2,70,000
As at March 31, 2019
Key management of the Company
Mr. Kaushik Chatterjee (up to July 30,2018) Director
Mr. Rajesh Sharma (w.e.f July 04, 2018) Managing Director
Mrs, Bhagyam Ramani Independent Director
Mr. Beni Prasad Rauka Independent Director
Mr. T.R. Bajalia Independent Director
As at March 31, 2018

Key P | of the C:
Mr. Rajesh Sharma Director
Mr, Kaushik Chatterjee Director
Mrs. Bhagyam Ramani Independent Director
Mr. Beni Prasad Rauka Independent Director
Mr. T.R. Bajalia Independent Director

As at April 1, 2017
Key i of the C Y
Mr, Rajesh Sharma Director
Mr. Sunil Kapoor Director
Mrs. Bhagyam Ramani Independent Director
Mr. Beni Prasad Rauka Independent Director
Mr. T.R. Bajalia Independent Director
Transactions with related party of the Company
Name of related parties and related party relationship:
a) Related parties where control exists:

Capri Globat Capital Limited (Holding Company)

For the year ended For the year ended
Statement Of Profit & Loss Item: March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Service fees 1,82,75,360 1,27,75,480
Sale of scrap - 250
Totat 1,82,75,360 1,27,75,730

Balance Sheet Item (Closing Balance):

As at March 31, 2019 | As at March 31, 2018

Amount Payable 26,23,513 -
Amount Receivable - 12,41,021
Yotal 26,23,513 12,41,021
b) Fellow subsidiary companies

Capri Global Resources Private Limited

Capri Global Asset Reconstruction Private Limited

Capri Global Capital (Mauritius) Limited.
¢) Enterprises over which Management and/or their relatives have control:

Capri Global Holdings Private timited

For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Rent 4,57,800 -
Total 4,57,800 -




Note- 45 Leases

Operating Leases:

The company has taken office premises under operating lease. The lease arrangement are normal
3to 5 years. Some of the lease agreements are having lock in period of eleven months to forty eight
the lease agreement becomes cancellable in nature at the option of the lessor or the lessee by giving 1-3 months notice

months which are non

Iyrenewableona(plryofmeleasepaiodattheopﬁonofﬂ\elssorllsseerangingfrom
-cancellable during that period. After the expiry of the lock in period,
to the either party. There are no restrictions imposed by the lease

agreement. There is no contingent rent in the lease agreement. There is escalation dause in some lease agl lease pay in respect of the non canceliabie
lease are as follows :

{Amount in Rs.)
Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
a) Payable not later than one year 1,08,58,618 1,31,61,558
b) Payable later than one year and not later than five years 38,22,162 1,05,19,517
c) Payable later than five years - -
The lease payments recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss in respect of non-cancellable lease for the year are Rs.14,788,266/- /- (31st March 2018: Rs.97,89,067/-).
The lease payments recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss in respect of canceliable lease for the year are Rs.74,27,400/- (31st March 2018: Rs.45,93,792/-).
Note 46-In accordance with IND AS - 33 Earnings per Share, the computation of earnings per share is set out below:

{Amount in Rg.)
Particulars For Year Ended March For Year Ended March 31,

31, 2019 2018
Net Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss (A) Rs. 6,98,23,951 (6,97,10,276)
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating Basic EPS (B) Nos. 3,71,00,455 3,19,47,161
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating Diluted EPS (C) Nos. 3,71,00,455 3,22,70,513
;l:asrl: )eamlngs per equity share (in Rupees) (Face value of Rs. 10/- per (AY(B) Rs. 1.88 (2.18)
ls):aurtee;j earnings per equity share (in Rupees) (Face value of Rs. 10/- per (AY(© Rs. 1.88 (2.18)
. For Year Ended March For Year Ended March 31,

Particulars 31,2019 2018
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating EPS Nos. 3,71,00,455 3,19,47,161
Add : Equity shares for no consideration arising on grant of stock options under ESOP Nos. - 3,23,352
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculation of diluted EPS Nos. 3,71,00,455 3,22,70,513

Note 47- The Company believes that no impairment of assets arises during the year as required under IND AS 36 "Impairment of Assets"

Note 48- CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Income tax matter under dispute Rs. 212,329 (March 31, 2018 Rs. NIL)

Note 49- Capital and other commitment

a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for Rs. Nil /- (31st March, 2018 Rs. Nil)

b) Other Commitments

Pending disbursements of sanctioned loans Rs. 163,25,64,730 ( March 31, 2018 Rs. 88,71,76,823)

Note 50- Based on the intimation received by the Company, none of the suppliers have confirmed to be registered under “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED") Act,
2006". Accordingly, no disclosures relating to amounts unpaid as at the year end together with interest paid /payable are required to be furnished.

Note 51- In the opinion of the Management, the Current Assets, Loans & Advances are realizable in the ordinary course of business at least equal to the amount at which they are stated in the
Balance Sheet. The provision for all known liabilities is adequate and not in excess of the amount reasonably necessary.




52.1

52.2

CAPRI GLOBAL HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended on 31st March, 2019

52 Disclosures have been given

in terms of notification

no.

NHB.HFC.CG-

DIR.1/MD&CEO/2016 dated February 9, 2017 issued by the National Housing Bank. The
below mentioned notes have been prepared taking into consideration the notification No.
NHB (ND)/DRS/Policy Circular No.89/2017-18 dated 14th June 2018.

Capital To Risk Assets Ratio (CRAR):

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
(i) CRAR (%) 50.83 69.52 |
(ii) CRAR - Tier I Capital (%) 50.35 69.09
(ili) CRAR - Tier II Capital (%) 0.48 0.43

(iv)

Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier- II Capital

(v)

Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments

Reserve Fund u/s 29C of NHB Act, 1987

[Amount in Rs.]

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Balance at the beginning of the year

a) Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank
Act, 1987

28,100,000

7,000,000

b) Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax
Act, 1961 taken into account for the purposes of Statutory
Reserve under Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

¢) Total

28,100,000

7,000,000

Addition / Appropriation / Withdrawal during the year

Add:
a) Amount transferred u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

64,92,900

21,100,000

b) Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax
Act, 1961 taken into account for the purposes of Statutory
Reserve under Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

7,507,100

Less:

a) Amount appropriated from the Statutory reserve u/s 29C
of the NHB Act, 1987

b) Amount withdrawn from the Special Reserve u/s
36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account
which has been taken into account for the purpose of
provision u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

Balance at the end of the year

a) Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank
Act, 1987

3,45,92,900

28,100,000

b) Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax
Act, 1961 taken into account for the purposes of Statutory
Reserve under Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

7,507,100

c) Total

421,00,000

28,100,000
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CAPRI GLOBAL HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended on 31st March, 2019

52.3 Investments

[Amount in Rs.]

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

(1) [|Value of Investments
(i) |Gross Value of Investments
(@) |In India 10,973,681 10,973,681
(b) |Outside India Nit Nil
(i)  |Provisions for Depreciation
(a) |In India Nil Nil
(b) |Outside India Nil Nil
(iii) |Net Value of Investments
(@) |In India 10,973,681 10,973,681
(b) |Outside India Nil Nil
(2) {Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on
investments.
(i) Opening balance Nil Nil
(ii) |Add: Provisions made during the year Nil Nil
(iii) |Less: Write-off/ write-back of excess provisions Nil Nil
during the year
(iv) |Closing balance Nil Nil

52.4 Derivatives

The company has not entered into any derivatives transactions.

52.5 Disclosures relating to Securitisation

There are no securitization/ Assignment transactions during the year ended 315t March, 2019.
Hence, the related disclosures are not applicable.




CAPRI GLOBAL HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended on 31st March, 2019

52.6 Assets Liability Management (Maturity pattern of certain items of Assets and Liabilities)

Current Year [Amount in Rs.]

Particulars

Upto
30/31

Days (1
month)

Over 1
month &
upto 2
months

Over 2
months
& upto

3 months

Over 3
months
& upto

6 months

Over 6
month &
upto 1

year

Over 1 year &

upto 3 years

Over 3
years
&up to 5

years

Over 5
years
&upto?

years

Over 7
years & up
to 10
years

Over
10

Years

Total

Liabilities

Deposits

Borrowings

from Bank

57,900,000

94,300,000

49,150,000

192,350,000

530,200,000

2,252,700,000

6,28,21,752

Market

Borrowing

2,155,000,000

1,405,350,000

6,799,771,7%

Foreign
Currency

Liabilities

Advances

67,529,365

15,021,255

9,842,488

28,452,200

79,905,675

277,847,413

354,516,993

384,780,667

1,018,203,649

5,690,383,138

7,926,482,84

Investments

10,973,681

10,973,681

Foreign
Currency

Assets

Previous Year {

Amount in Rs

Particulars

Upto
30/31

Days (1
month)

Over 1
month &
upto 2
months

Over 2
months
& upto
3 months

Over 3
months
& upto
6 months

Over 6
month &
upto 1
year

Over 1 year
& 3
years

upto

Over 3
years
&upto5

years

Over 5 years
&upto?
years

Over 7
years & up
to 10
years

Over
10

Years

Total

Liabilities

Deposits

Borrowings

from Bank

2,500,000

2,500,000

40,714,286

642,397,748

213,926,856

142,857,144

53,571,425

1,098,467,45

Market

Borrowing

Foreign
Currency
Liabilities

Assets

Advances

13,479,921

6,886,334

3,621,313

11,961,608

27,587,433

122,600,332

152,785,891

889,583,042

245,948,834 |

985,628,414

2,460,083,12

Investments

10,973,681

10,973,6¢

Foreign

Currency

Assets

fr.
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CAPRI GLOBAL HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended on 31st March, 2019

52.7 Exposure

Exposure to Real Estate Sector

[Amount in Rs.]

Category

Current Year

Previous Year

a)

Direct Exposure

(i) |Residential Mortgages -
Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential
property that is or will be occupied by the borrower or
that is rented; (Individual housing loans up to 15 lakhs
may be shown separately)
Loans <= 15 Lakhs 5,191,512,809 1,394,900,955
Loans > 15 Lakhs 2,674,691,100 1,055,213,606
(ii) |Commercial Real Estate - N
Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real
estates (office buildings, retail space, multi- purpose
commercial premises, multi-family residential buildings,
multi-tenanted commercial premises, industrial or . '
warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, development Nil Nil
and construction, etc.). Exposure would also include
non-fund based (NFB) limits.
(iii) Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and
other securitised exposures -
a) Residential Nil Nil
b) Commercial Real Estate Nil Nil
Indirect Exposure
Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National Nil Nil

Housing Bank (NHB) and Housing Finance Companies (HFCs)

Exposure to Capital Market

The Company do not have any exposure to Capital Market. Hence the related disclosures are not
applicable.

52.8 Details of financing of parent company products
These details are not applicable to company as the company is not financing any parent company
products.

52.9 Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL)exceeded by the

HFC

These details are not applicable to company as the company has not exceeded the SGL / GBL limit.

52.10 Unsecured Advances

The exposure to unsecured advances is Rs. Nil (Previous year Rs. Nil)

52.11 Miscellaneous
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CAPRI GLOBAL HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended on 31st March, 2019

b) No penalties imposed by NHB and other regulators during the year

c) Related party Transactions

Details of all material transactions with related parties are disclosed in Note no. 44.

d) Rating assigned by Credit Rating Agencies and migration of rating during the year

Sr. No. Instrument Rating Agency Date of Amount in Rs
assignhed Rating
1 Long Term CARE A- Stable CARE 07-Sep-18 11,000,000,000
Bank Ratings
Facilities
2 Long Term A+ 06-Dec-18 6,000,000,000
Bank Acuité
Facilities Ratings &
Research
3 Ccp Al+ Acuité 6-Dec-18 1,000,000,000
Ratings &
Research

e) Revenue Recognition

There have been no instances in which revenue recognition has been postponed pending

resolution of significant Uncertainties.

52.12 Additional Disclosures

52.12.1 Provisions and Contingencies

[Amount in Rs.]

Break up of '‘Provisions and Contingencies' shown under the
head Expenditure in Statement of Profit and Loss

Current Year

Previous Year

Provisions for depreciation on Investment Nil Nil
Provision made towards Income tax 45,749,812 9,197,298
Provision towards NPA 5,787,917 489,167
Provision for Standard Assets (with details like teaser loan, CRE, 13,850,174 6,030,142
CRE-EH etc.)

Other Provision and Contingencies includes:

Provision for depreciation on fixed assets 17,637,511 5,224,828
Provision for gratuity 21,81,854 442,568
Provision for leave encashment 30,80,741 1,461,606

Housing Non-Housing
Break up of Loan & Advances and Current Year Previous Year Current Year| Previous
Provisions thereon Year
Standard Assets
a) Total Outstanding Amount 737,49,94,045 |2,365,374,603| 449,413,080 | 94,708,519
b) Provisions made 1,89,91,668 5,912,531 11,49,871 378,834
Sub-Standard Assets
48 @) Total Outstanding Amount _ 3,97,74,232 3,261,111 20,72,992 Nil
/Pl WP Aorovisions made 59,66,135 | 489,167 3,10,949 Nit
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CAPRI GLOBAL HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended on 31st March, 2019

| Doubtful Assets ~ Category-1I |
a) Total Outstanding Amount Nil Nil Nil Nil |
b) Provisions made Nil Nil Nil Nil |
Doubtful Assets - Category-II
a) Total Outstanding Amount Nil Nil Nil Nit
b) Provisions made Nil Nil Nil Nil
Doubtful Assets ~ Category-III
a) Total Outstanding Amount Nil Nil Nil Nil
b) Provisions made Nil Nil Nil Nil
Loss Assets
a) Total Outstanding Amount Nil Nil Nil Nil |
b) Provisions made Nil Nil Nil Nil |
TOTAL
a) Total Outstanding Amount 741,47,68,277 |236,86,35,714 45,14,86,072 |9,47,08,519
| b) Provisions made 2,49,57,803 6,401,698 14,60,819 378,834 |

52.12.2 Draw Down from Reserves
The Company has not made any draw down from reserves during the previous year.
52.12.3 Concentration of Public Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPAs

Concentration of Public Deposits

The disclosure of the concentration of deposits taken is not applicable as the company carries
on the business of a housing finance institution without accepting public deposits.

Concentration of Loan and Advances

[Amount in Rs.]
Current Year | Previous Year

Total Loans and Advances to twenty largest borrowers 95,155,270 94,275,771

Percentage of Loans and Advances to twenty largest 1.21% 3.83%
borrowers to Total Advances of the Company

Concentration of Exposures (Including Off-Balance Sheet Exposure)

[Amount in Rs.]
Current Year | Previous Year

Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers/customers 97,502,061 94,462,370

) Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest borrowers / 1.02% 2.94%
o 9\&32\\8\ customers to Total Exposure of the HFC on borrowers /
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CAPRI GLOBAL HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended on 31st March, 2019

Concentration of NPAs

Amount in Rs.]

Current Year Previous
Year
Total Exposure to top ten NPA accounts (Gross) 2,27,77,135 3,261,111

Sector-wise NPAs

Sl. No!Sector Percentage of NPAs to Total 1
Advances in that sector
A, Housing Loans:
1. |Individuals 0.54%
2. |[Builders/Project Loans Nil
3. |Corporates Nil o
4. |Others Nil
B. Non-Housing Loans:
1. |Individuais 0.46%
2. |Builders/Project Loans Nil ]
3. |Corporates Nil
4. |Others Nil

Movement of NPAs

[Amount in Rs.]
Current Previous
Particulars Year Year
(i) |Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 0.45% 0.11%
(ii) Movement of NPAs (Gross)
(a) |Opening balance 3,261,111 Nil
(b) |Additions during the year 3,85,86,113| 3,261,111
(c) [Reductions during the year Nil Nil
(d) [Closing balance 4,18,47,224] 3,261,111
(iii) [Movement of Net NPAs
(a) |Opening balance 2,771,944 Nil
(b) |Additions during the year 3,27,98,196| 2,771,944
(c) |Reductions during the year Nil Nil
(d) |Closing balance 3,55,70,140| 2,771,944




CAPRI GLOBAL HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended on 31st March, 2019

(iv) IMovement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on standard assets)
(a) |Opening balance 489,167 Nil
(b) |Provisions made during the year 57,87,917 | 489,167
(c) |Write-off / write-back  of excess provisions Nil Nil
(d) |Ciosing balance 62,77,084 | 489,167

52.12.4 Overseas Assets
The company does not have any overseas assets.

52.12.5 Off-balance Sheet SPVs sponsored

The company has not sponsored any SPVs. Accordingly, the disclosure is not applicable.

52.12.6 Disclosure of Complaints

Customer Complaints

Particulars Current Year |Previous Year
(a) |No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year Nil Nil
(b) {No. of complaints received during the year 27 1
(c) {No. of complaints redressed during the year 27 1
(d) |No. of complaint spending at the end of the year Nil Nil
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Note 53:
a) Figures are rounded off to nearest rupee.
b) Previous year's figures have been regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary to confirm to current year’s presentation.

<)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

(Rajesh Sharm—a)_mani) ‘R Bajalia) (Beni Pragad Rauka) (Kajm

Managing Director  Independent Director Independent Director  Independertt Director Company Secretary
DIN 00020037 DIN 00107097 DIN 02291892 DIN 00295213

Place: M el
Date: 9\7/0£f/i°($l






